
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical Center 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, September 18, 2019 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
 Board Members:  Alsop, Berjis, Bigler, Brar, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 

Roll Call: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED 
WITH A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL 
BY KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY STAFF. THE "CA" REPRESENTS THE 
CONSENT AGENDA. CONSENT ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED FIRST AND MAY 
BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR AUDIENCE 
WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS 
DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN LISTED SEQUENCE WITH AN 
OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  9.18.19 
 

Page | 2  

 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

 
1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter not on 

this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond briefly to 
statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral 
to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the Board at a later meeting. In 
addition, the Board may take action to direct the staff to place a matter of business on a future 
agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR 
NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on their own 

activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to 
have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government Code section 
54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
 

RECOGNITION 
 
3) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing the Kern Medical Center Information 

Technology staff for extraordinary service – 
MAKE PRESENTATION 

 
 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

CA 
4) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

August 21, 2019 –  
APPROVE 

 
CA 
5) Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 2016-066 with Regional Anesthesia Associates, 

Inc., an independent contractor, for professional medical services in the Department of 
Anesthesiology, for the period November 9, 2016 through November 8, 2019, extending the 
term for three years from November 9, 2019 through November 8, 2022, in an amount not to 
exceed $17,673,876 to cover the extended term –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
6) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 094-2017 with Kern Vascular Call 

Group, Inc., an independent contractor, for professional medical services in the Department of 
Surgery, for the period January 15, 2018 through January 14, 2020, extending the term for one 
year from January 15, 2020 through January 14, 2021, adding ‘First Assist’ vascular surgery 
support, and increasing the maximum payable by $750,000, from $600,000 to $1,350,000, to 
cover the additional services and extended term –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  9.18.19 
 

Page | 3  

CA 
7) Proposed Agreement with United Neuroscience, Inc., an independent contractor, for 

professional medical services in the Department of Medicine from October 1, 2019 through 
September 30, 2021, in an amount not to exceed $1,940,000 –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
8) Proposed Work Order No. 3 to Agreement 07018 with Leidos Health, LLC, an independent 

contractor, for professional consulting services related to the Cerner Millennium go-live 
implementation from October 31, 2019 through November 14, 2019, in an amount not to 
exceed $1,020,337 – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
9) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 7 to Agreement 14818 with Healthcare Performance 

Group, Inc., an independent contractor, for professional consulting services related to the 
Cerner Millennium project, for the period May 7, 2018 through December 20, 2019, increasing 
the maximum payable by $342,160, from $1,645,704 to $1,987,864, to cover payment for 
additional services, effective August 3, 2019 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
10) Proposed Resolution authorizing the Kern County Hospital Authority to participate in one-time 

housing funds for Whole Person Care Pilots Funding Opportunity under Budget Act of 2019 
(AB 74) – 
APPROVE; ADOPT RESOLUTION; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
AGREEMENTS SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY COUNSEL 
 

CA 
11) Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 10719 with Western Pacific Roofing Corporation, 

an independent contractor, for roofing construction services at 1111 Columbus Avenue, 
increasing the maximum payable by $5,611, from $268,000 to $273,611, to cover the cost of 
bonds and permits –  

 MAKE FINDING PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER CEQA REVIEW PER SECTIONS 
15301 AND 15061(b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; APPROVE; AUTHORIZE 
CHAIRMAN TO SIGN; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO APPROVE ANY 
FUTURE CHANGE ORDERS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 10% OF THE TOTAL 
CONTRACT PRICE  

 
CA 
12) Proposed approval of Administrative Policy for Electronic Health Record (EHR) Transition and 

Implementation, to define the process for workflow changes during transition and 
implementation of the Cerner EHR – 

 APPROVE 
 
13) Public hearing regarding the meet and confer impasse between representatives of the Kern 

County Hospital Authority and Committee of Interns and Residents/Service Employees 
International Union, Local 1957, and Resolution implementing the six percent wage increase 
set forth in the Authority’s last, best and final offer, effective July 1, 2019 – 
OPEN HEARING; CLOSE HEARING; APPROVE; ADOPT RESOLUTION; DIRECT STAFF 
TO IMPLEMENT 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  9.18.19 
 

Page | 4  

 
14) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
15) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
CA 
16) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of August 31, 2019 –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
17) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and Safety 

Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –  
 
18) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Monina Viloria v. Kern Medical 
Center, Workers’ Compensation Appeals Board Case Nos. ADJ9552090 and ADJ4587347 – 

 
19) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: One (1) Significant 
exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice of legal counsel, 
based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not limited to, an accident, disaster, incident, 
or transactional occurrence that might result in litigation against the Authority and that are 
known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs –  
 

20) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(1).) Number of cases: One thousand five 
hundred forty-eight (1,548) Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of 
Governors on the advice of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances that might result 
in litigation against the authority but which the authority believes are not yet known to a potential 
plaintiff or plaintiffs, which facts and circumstances need not be disclosed – 

 
21) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive Officer 

(Government Code Section 54957) –  
 
 
RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURN TO WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 16, 2019, AT 11:30 A.M. 
 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  9.18.19 
 

Page | 5  

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR AGENDA ITEMS 

 
All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review at Kern Medical Center in the 
Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 93306 during regular business 
hours, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, following the posting of the agenda.  Any 
supporting documentation that relates to an agenda item for an open session of any regular meeting 
that is distributed after the agenda is posted and prior to the meeting will also be available for review 
at the same location.   

 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code Section 54953.2) 

 
The Kern Medical Center Conference Room is accessible to persons with disabilities. Disabled 
individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the Kern County 
Hospital Authority Board of Governors may request assistance at Kern Medical Center in the 
Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California, or by calling (661) 
326-2102. Reasonable efforts will be made to accommodate individuals with disabilities by making 
meeting material available in alternative formats. Requests for assistance should be made five (5) 
working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  9.18.19 
 

Page | 6  

 
17) CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS FILED AS OF AUGUST 31, 2019 – 
 RECEIVE AND FILE  
 

A) Notice pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 364 in the matter of Maria Esperanza 
Cuellar de Polanco 

B) Summons and Complaint in the matter of Jared Patrick Bookout v. Kern Medical Center, et al., 
Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-19-101305 



 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
Kern Medical Center 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 
Conference Room 1058 

Bakersfield, California 93306 
 

Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, August 21, 2019 

 
11:30 A.M. 

 
BOARD RECONVENED 
 
Board Members: Alsop, Berjis, Bigler, Brar, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 
ROLL CALL: 5 Present; 2 Absent – McLaughlin, Pelz 

 
NOTE:  The vote is displayed in bold below each item. For example, Alsop-McLaughlin denotes 
Director Alsop made the motion and Director McLaughlin seconded the motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH A "CA" 
ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 
 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 
NOTE: DIRECTOR PELZ ARRIVED AFTER THE VOTE ON THE CONSENT AGENDA 
 
NOTE: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ANDREW CANTU ARRIVED AFTER THE VOTE ON THE 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

 
1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter not on 

this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond briefly to 
statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral 
to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the Board at a later meeting. In 
addition, the Board may take action to direct the staff to place a matter of business on a future 
agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR 
NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 
NO ONE HEARD 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                           
  8.21.19 
 

Page | 2  

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on their own 

activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to 
have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government Code section 
54954.2(a)(2)) 
 
CHAIRMAN BIGLER REPORTED ON HIS ATTENDANCE AT THE VALLEY FEVER WALK 
AND THE PUBLIC INFORMATION AND EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY OFFERED 

 
 

RECOGNITION 
 
3) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing the American Heart Association Stroke 

Gold Plus Achievement Award presented to Kern Medical Center – 
MADE PRESENTATION; KATAYOUN SABETIAN, M.D., AND KIRON THOMAS, M.D., 
HEARD 

 
 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

CA 
4) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

July 17, 2019 –  
APPROVED 
Berjis-Brar: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - McLaughlin, Pelz 

 
CA 
5) Proposed Resolution in the matter of compliance with Health and Safety Code Section 130066 

(AB 2190) regarding the deadline for substantial compliance the seismic safety regulations and 
standards described in Health and Safety Code Section 130065 –  
APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2019-007 
Berjis-Brar: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - McLaughlin, Pelz 

 
CA 
6) Proposed retroactive Allied Health Education Program Agreement with Kern Community 

College District, an independent contractor, containing non-standard terms and conditions, for 
clinical laboratory instruction of students at Kern Medical Center and its affiliated clinics, from 
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022 –  
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 048-2019 
Berjis-Brar: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - McLaughlin, Pelz 

 
CA 
7) Proposed Agreement with Cantu Management Group, Inc., an independent contractor, for 

Chief Financial Officer and healthcare consulting and financial management services from 
September 1, 2019 through August 31, 2023, in an amount not to exceed $7,200,000 for the 
period September 1, 2019 through August 31, 2021 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 049-2019 
Berjis-Brar: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - McLaughlin, Pelz 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                           
  8.21.19 
 

Page | 3  

 
CA 
8) Proposed request to close Kern County Hospital Authority fiduciary fund (Fund 42930) within 

the Financial Management System of the County of Kern –  
 APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2019-008; AUTHORIZED CHIEF FINANCIAL 

OFFICER TO DIRECT KERN COUNTY AUDITOR-CONTROLLER-COUNTY CLERK TO 
CLOSE FUND 42930 AND TRANSFER ANY REMAINING FUNDS TO KERN COUNTY 
HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
Berjis-Brar: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - McLaughlin, Pelz 

 
CA 
9) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 011-1019 with PNC Bank, National 

Association (PNC Bank), for a revolving line of credit for the period March 1, 2019 through 
February 28, 2021, to permit an increase in the principal amount to $50,000,000 at any time 
within the two-year term of the Agreement, effective July 1, 2019, and delegating authority to 
certain officers –  
APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2019-009; AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED ANY 
TWO OF THE FOLLOWING OFFICERS (EACH, AN “AUTHORIZED OFFICER”), FOR AND 
IN THE NAME OF AND ON BEHALF OF THE AUTHORITY, TO EXECUTE THE FIRST 
AMENDMENT CREDIT AGREEMENT AND PROMISSORY NOTE 050-2019, 
SUBSTANTIALLY IN THE FORM PRESENTED TO THIS BOARD, WITH SUCH CHANGES 
AS THE AUTHORIZED OFFICERS EXECUTING THE SAME, TOGETHER WITH THE VICE 
PRESIDENT & GENERAL COUNSEL OF THE AUTHORITY, SHALL APPROVE: CHAIRMAN 
OF THIS BOARD, VICE-CHAIRMAN OF THIS BOARD, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF 
THE AUTHORITY, CHIEF STRATEGY OFFICER OF THE AUTHORITY OR CHIEF 
FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THE AUTHORITY 
Berjis-Brar: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - McLaughlin, Pelz 

 
CA 
10) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 01419 with Kaufman, Hall & Associates, 

LLC, an independent contractor, for treasury services implementation support for the period 
February 1, 2019 through July 31, 2019, extending the term for a period of four months from 
August 1, 2019 through November 30, 2019, and increasing the maximum payable by 
$120,600, from $193,500 to $314,100, to cover the extended term –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 051-2019 
Berjis-Brar: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - McLaughlin, Pelz 

 
CA 
11) Proposed Resolution in the matter of revising the extension of excess medical professional 

liability coverage for Kern Medical Center employed and independent contractor physicians, 
effective August 21, 2019 – 
APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2019-010 
Berjis-Brar: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - McLaughlin, Pelz 

 
CA 
12) Proposed Agreement with Pacific Gynecologic Specialists, an independent contractor, for 

professional medical services in the Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology from September 
1, 2019 through August 31, 2021, in an amount not to exceed $800,000 – 
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 052-2019 
Berjis-Brar: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - McLaughlin, Pelz 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                           
  8.21.19 
 

Page | 4  

 
13) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 

Pelz-Sistrunk: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - McLaughlin 
 
14) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 

Sistrunk-Brar: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - McLaughlin 
 
CA 
15) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of July 31, 2019 –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 

Berjis-Brar: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - McLaughlin, Pelz 
 
 
ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
Pelz-Sistrunk 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
16) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and Safety 

Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
17) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Eric vanSonnenberg, M.D. v. County 
of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-15-100859 TSC – SEE RESULTS 
BELOW 
 

18) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Service Employees International 
Union, Local 521 v. County of Kern, et al., Public Employment Relations Board Case No. LA-
CE-1084-M – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
19) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: Two (2) Significant 
exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice of legal counsel, 
based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not limited to, an accident, disaster, incident, 
or transactional occurrence that might result in litigation against the Authority and that are 
known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
20) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive Officer 

(Government Code Section 54957) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
21) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority trade 

secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
 
RECONVENED FROM CLOSED SESSION 
Berjis-Brar 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                           
  8.21.19 
 

Page | 5  

 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Item No. 16 concerning Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health 
practitioners (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; BY A UNANIMOUS  
VOTE OF THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT (MOTION BY DIRECTOR PELZ, SECOND BY 
DIRECTOR BRAR; 1 ABSENT - DIRECTOR MCLAUGHLIN), THE BOARD APPROVED ALL 
PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL APPOINTMENT, REAPPOINTMENT, 
RELEASE OF PROCTORING, VOLUNTARY RESIGNATION OF PRIVILEGES, AND 
AUTOMATIC TERMINATION OF PRIVILEGES; NO OTHER REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 17 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Eric vanSonnenberg, M.D. v. County 
of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-15-100859 TSC – HEARD; NO 
REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 18 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Service Employees International 
Union, Local 521 v. County of Kern, et al., Public Employment Relations Board Case No. LA-
CE-1084-M – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
Item No. 19 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: Two (2) 
Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice of legal 
counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not limited to, an accident, disaster, 
incident, or transactional occurrence that might result in litigation against the Authority and that 
are known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
Item No. 20 concerning PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief 
Executive Officer (Government Code Section 54957) – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION 
TAKEN 

 
Item No. 21 concerning Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking 
action on authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – HEARD; 
NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
ADJOURNED TO WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2019, AT 11:30 A.M. 
Berjis 
 
 
 
/s/ Mona A. Allen 

Authority Board Coordinator 
 
 
 
/s/ Russell E. Bigler 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
 Kern County Hospital Authority 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
September 18, 2019 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 2016‐066 with Regional Anesthesia Associates, 
Inc. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve, Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 2016‐066 with Regional Anesthesia 
Associates, Inc., an independent contractor, for professional medical services in the Department of 
Anesthesiology.   The group has provided anesthesia services at Kern Medical since 2016.   
 
The proposed amendment is extending the term three years from November 9, 2019 through November 8, 
2022.  The maximum payable will not exceed $17,673,876 to cover the extended term. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the agreement with Regional Anesthesia Associates, Inc. 
for professional medical services in the Department of Anesthesiology from November 9, 2019 through 
November 8, 2022, in an amount not to exceed $17,673,876 to cover the extended term, and authorize the 
Chairman to sign. 
 

 
 
 
 

















 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
September 18, 2019 
 
Subject:  Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 2 to Agreement with Kern Vascular Call Group, Inc. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve, Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed retroactive agreement with Kern Vascular Call Group, 
Inc., an independent contractor, for professional medical services in the Department of Surgery, adding ‘First 
Assist’ vascular surgery support during ‘open’ vascular procedures, including trauma.   
 
The proposed agreement is extending the term for one year from January 15, 2020 through January 14, 2021.  
The maximum payable will not exceed $1,350,000 to cover the additional services and term of the agreement. 
 

Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the agreement with Kern Vascular Call Group, Inc. for 
professional medical services in the Department of Surgery for the period January 15, 2018 through January 14, 
2020, extending the term for one year from January 15, 2020 through January 14, 2021, adding ‘First Assist’ 
vascular surgery support and increasing the maximum payable by $750,000 from $600,000 to $1,350,000 to 
cover the additional services and extend the term, and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 

 
 
 
 



1 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 
TO 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

(Kern County Hospital Authority – Kern Vascular Call Group, Inc.) 
 
 This Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement for Professional Services is made and entered 
into this _____ day of __________, 2019, between the Kern County Hospital Authority, a local 
unit of government (“Authority”), which owns and operates Kern Medical Center (“KMC”), and 
Kern Vascular Call Group, Inc., a California professional medical corporation (“Contractor”), 
with its principal place of business located at 4901 Centennial Plaza Way, Bakersfield, 
California 93312. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 (a) Authority and Contractor have heretofore entered into an Agreement for 
Professional Services (Agt. #094-2017, dated December 13, 2017) and Amendment No. 1 (Agt. 
#09819, dated March 19, 2019) (the “Agreement”), for the period January 15, 2018 through 
January 14, 2020, for professional medical services in the Department of Surgery at KMC; and 
 

(b) It is the intent of the parties to have the terms of the Agreement provide for the 
payment of all reasonably projected costs and expenses related to the services provided by 
Contractor; and  
 
 (c) The parties agree to amend certain terms and conditions of the Agreement as 
hereinafter set forth; and 
 
 (d) The Agreement is amended effective August 22, 2019; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 

hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 
agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 

 
1. Recitals, paragraph (c), shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

“(c) Contractor is a California professional medical corporation with medical 
doctors, and physician assistants and advanced practice registered nurses functioning in 
an expanded role as a surgical first assistant (“First Assist,” and together with the medical 
doctors, collectively “Group Physicians” or individually “Group Physician”) who provide 
services on behalf of Contractor; and” 

 
2. Section 1, Term, shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

“1. Term.  This Agreement shall be effective and the term shall commence as of 
January 15, 2018 (the “Effective Date”), and shall end January 14, 2021, unless earlier 
terminated pursuant to other provisions of this Agreement as herein stated.” 

 



2 
 

3. Section 2, Obligations of Contractor, paragraph 2.1, Specified Services, subparagraph 
2.1.4, First Assist Vascular Surgery Support, shall be made part of the Agreement as follows: 
 

“2.1.7 First Assist Vascular Surgery Support.  Contractor shall provide 
First Assist support for vascular surgery cases on weekday evenings, weekends, 
and holidays.  Contractor shall be responsible to arrange for First Assist coverage 
when needed.” 

 
4. Section 2.6, Qualifications of Group Physicians, paragraph 2.6.1, Licensure/Board 
Certification, shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

“2.6.1 Licensure/Board Certification.  Group Physicians shall at all times 
during the term of this Agreement be either duly licensed physicians and surgeons 
in the state of California, practicing in the medical specialty of vascular surgery, 
and certified by or eligible for certification by the American Board of Surgery in 
vascular surgery-general, OR First Assist licensed in the state of California.” 

 
5. Section 2.6, Qualifications of Group Physicians, paragraph 2.6.2, Medical Staff Status, 
shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

“2.6.2 Medical Staff Status.  Group Physicians, excluding First Assist, 
shall at all times during the term of this Agreement be members in good standing 
of the KMC medical staff with “active” or “courtesy” staff status and hold all 
clinical privileges on the active or courtesy medical staff appropriate to the 
discharge of his or her obligations under this Agreement.”   

 
6. Section 2.6, Qualifications of Group Physicians, paragraph 2.6.5, First Assist Practice 
Privileges, shall be made part of the Agreement as follows: 
 

“2.6.5 First Assist Practice Privileges.  First Assist shall apply and at all 
times during the term of this Agreement qualify for practice privileges in the 
Allied Health Professionals category approved for practice in KMC by the Kern 
County Hospital Authority Board of Governors.  First Assist are not eligible for 
membership in the KMC medical staff.  However, First Assist must be 
professionally competent and continuously meet the qualifications, standards and 
requirements set forth or otherwise referenced in the KMC medical staff bylaws, 
rules, and regulations, and/or the Interdisciplinary Practice Manuel, each of which 
is incorporated herein by this reference.”   

 
7. Section 4, Payment for Services, paragraph 4.1, Compensation, subparagraph 4.1.5, First 
Assist Vascular Surgery Support, shall be made part of the Agreement as follows: 

 
“4.1.5 First Assist Vascular Surgery Coverage.  Authority will pay 

Contractor for First Assist vascular surgery coverage as follows: (i) a fixed fee of 
$500 per First Assist call-in; and (ii) $125 per hour, prorated in 15-minute 
increments for partial hours, for coverage.  Payment for First Assist vascular 



3 
 

surgery coverage is limited to the procedures set forth in Exhibit “C,” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.” 

 
8. Section 4, Payment for Services, paragraph 4.1, Compensation, subparagraph 4.1.6, Fair 
Market Value Compensation, shall be made part of the Agreement as follows: 
 

“4.1.6 Fair Market Value Compensation.  The compensation provided 
under section 4.1 represents the parties’ good faith determination of the 
reasonable fair market value compensation for the services to be provided by 
Contractor under this Agreement.”  

 
9. Section 4, Payment for Services, paragraph 4.5, Maximum Payable, shall be deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following: 

 
“4.5 Maximum Payable.  The maximum payable under this Agreement will not 

exceed $1,350,000 over the three-year term of this Agreement.”   
 
10. Exhibit “C,” Vascular Surgery Cases, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference, shall be made part of the Agreement. 
 
11. All capitalized terms used in this Amendment and not otherwise defined, shall have the 
meaning ascribed thereto in the Agreement. 
 
12. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
state of California. 
 
13.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
14. Except as provided herein, all other terms, conditions, and covenants of the Agreement 
and any and all amendments thereto shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 

[Signatures follow on next page] 
 





5 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

VASCULAR SURGERY CASES 
 
 

All ‘open’ vascular procedures, including trauma. 
 

 
[Intentionally left blank] 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
September 18, 2019 
 
Subject:  Proposed Agreement with United Neurosciences, Inc. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve, Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed agreement with United Neurosciences, Inc., an 
independent contractor, for professional medical services in the Department of Medicine.   The group has 
provided neurology, neuro‐interventional radiology and telemedicine services at Kern Medical since 2015 adding 
seizure and epilepsy monitoring coverage in 2017.   
 
The proposed agreement is for a term of two years from October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2021.  The 
maximum payable will not exceed $1,940,000 over the two‐year term of the agreement. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the agreement with United Neurosciences, Inc. for 
professional medical services in the Department of Medicine from October 1, 2019 through September 30, 
2021, in an amount not to exceed $1,940,000 over the two‐year term, and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 

 
 
 
 



1 

 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

(Kern County Hospital Authority – United Neuroscience, Inc. )                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
 

This Agreement for Professional Services (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 

_____ day of __________, 2019, between the Kern County Hospital Authority, a local unit of 

government (“Authority”), which owns and operates Kern Medical Center (“KMC”), and United 

Neuroscience, Inc., a California professional medical corporation (“Contractor”), with its 

principal place of business located at 11622 Harrington Street, Bakersfield, California 93311. 

 

I. 

RECITALS 

 

(a) Authority is authorized, pursuant to section 101852 of Part 4 of Division 101 of 

the Health and Safety Code, to contract for special services with individuals specially trained, 

experienced, expert, and competent to perform those services; and 

 

 (b) Authority owns and operates KMC, a general acute care hospital located at 1700 

Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California, and affiliated clinics (collectively, the 

“Premises”), in which is located the Department of Surgery (the “Department”); and   

 

 (c) Contractor is a California professional medical corporation with medical doctors 

(collectively, “Group Physicians” or individually, “Group Physician”) who provide services on 

behalf of Contractor; and 

 

(d) Authority requires the assistance of Contractor to provide professional medical 

services to patients of KMC in one or more clinical departments (collectively, the “Department”) 

and teaching services to medical students and resident physicians (the “Services”), as such 

Services are unavailable from Authority resources, and Contractor agrees to provide such 

Services on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and 

 

 (e) Contractor has special knowledge, training and experience, and is qualified to 

render such services;  

  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 

hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 

agree as follows:  

 

II. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

1. Term.  This Agreement shall be effective and the term shall commence as of October 1, 

2019 (the “Effective Date”), and shall end September 30, 2021, unless earlier terminated 

pursuant to other provisions of this Agreement as herein stated.              

 



2 

 

2. Obligations of Contractor.  

 

2.1 Services.  Contractor through Group Physicians shall render those Services set 

forth in Exhibit “A,” Scope of Services, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 

reference.  Contractor has designated those Group Physician(s) set forth in Exhibit “B,” 

Designated Group Physicians, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, to 

provide the Services set forth in this Agreement.  Contractor shall have authority and 

responsibility for providing Group Physicians to Authority (including recruiting, hiring, 

promoting, compensating, and disciplining) and for establishing the terms of each Group 

Physician’s employment with Contractor.  The parties understand and agree that the obligations 

of Group Physicians under this Agreement are limited to those Services specifically set forth in 

Exhibit “A.”  Such Services may be changed from time to time by agreement of the parties in 

accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

  2.2 Representations.  Contractor makes the following representations which are 

agreed to be material to and form a part of the inducement for this Agreement: (i) Contractor has 

the expertise and support staff necessary to provide the services described in this Agreement; and 

(ii) Contractor does not have any actual or potential interests adverse to Authority nor does 

Contractor represent a person or firm with an interest adverse to Authority with reference to the 

subject of this Agreement; and (iii) Contractor shall diligently provide all required services in a 

timely and professional manner in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement. 

 

2.3 Standard of Care.  Authority has relied upon the professional ability and training 

of Contractor as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor hereby agrees 

that all of its work will be performed and that its operations shall be conducted in accordance 

with generally accepted and applicable professional practices and standards as well as the 

requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws, it being understood that acceptance of 

Contractor’s work by Authority shall not operate as a waiver or release. 

 

2.4 Performance Standard.  Contractor shall perform all services hereunder in a 

manner consistent with the level of competency and standard of care normally observed by a 

person practicing in Contractor’s profession.  If Authority determines that any of Contractor’s 

work is not in accordance with such level of competency and standard of care, Authority, in its 

sole discretion, shall have the right to do any or all of the following: (a) require Contractor to 

meet with Authority to review the quality of the work and resolve matters of concern; (b) 

terminate this Agreement pursuant to the provisions of section 36; or (c) pursue any and all other 

remedies at law or in equity.  

 

 2.5 Group Physician Qualifications.  Contractor represents and warrants to Authority 

that: (a) Group Physicians are, and shall at all times during the term of this Agreement be, (i) 

duly qualified and licensed to practice medicine in the state of California, (ii) board certified by 

applicable professional or regulatory bodies, and (iii) have or hold such other professional 

certifications or qualifications as necessary to comply with the bylaws, rules, regulations or 

policies of all applicable regulatory and medical authorities and KMC; (b) Group Physicians 

have the experience, qualifications, and skills necessary to perform the Services required under 



3 

 

this Agreement; and (c) the Services will be rendered in a timely, competent, and professional 

manner.  

 

2.6 Medical Staff Documentation.  Prior to performing duties, each Group Physician 

providing Services hereunder shall (i) submit a completed application for medical staff 

membership to the KMC Medical Staff office, and (ii) provide proof of current licensure from 

the Medical Board of California or Osteopathic Medical Board of California, as applicable. 

 

2.7 Status of Group Physicians.  In the performance of Services rendered pursuant to 

this Agreement, and for all purposes hereof, it is mutually understood and agreed that Group 

Physicians are employees or independent contractors of Contractor and not employees of 

Authority or KMC.  Contractor shall be responsible for all wages, benefits, and withholding of 

payroll taxes for Group Physicians and Authority shall have no liability for such wages, benefits 

and taxes.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended nor construed to create a partner relationship, 

an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, a lease or landlord-tenant 

relationship between Contractor and Authority or KMC, or to allow Authority or KMC either to 

have or to exercise control, direction or supervision over the professional medical judgment, 

manner or methods by which Group Physicians perform the Services which are the subject 

matter of this Agreement; provided, however, that the Services to be provided hereunder by 

Group Physicians shall be provided in a manner consistent with the standards governing such 

Services and the provisions of this Agreement.  Authority and KMC shall retain final authority 

over the operation of KMC and its staff. 

 

2.8 Standards.  Group Physicians providing Services hereunder shall at all times 

during the term of this Agreement be members in good standing of the KMC medical staff and 

shall perform his or her professional medical duties in accordance with (i) the KMC medical 

staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies, (ii) all laws and regulations generally applicable to 

physicians practicing medicine in the state of California, and (iii) the standards and 

recommendations of The Joint Commission.  Upon 30 days’ prior written notice to Contractor, 

KMC may request that Contractor remove a Group Physician from providing Services if the staff 

membership or privileges of any Group Physician providing Services hereunder are modified or 

restricted in accordance with the KMC medical staff bylaws such that Services performed by 

said Group Physician are limited or restricted.  KMC may make such request at its sole 

discretion, except that KMC agrees to confer in good faith with Contractor regarding alternatives 

to such removal.  Contractor shall arrange for a replacement within 30 days from receiving such 

notice from KMC. 

 

 2.9 Equipment.  Contractor, in its sole cost, shall furnish telemedicine equipment and 

supplies necessary for Group Physicians to perform the telemedicine Services set forth in this 

Agreement at Contractor’s off-site location. 

 

2.10 Hours of Availability.  Designated Group Physicians will perform the Services set 

forth in this Agreement 24 hours per day, 365 days per year.   

 

2.11 Loss or Limitation.  Contractor shall notify KMC in writing as soon as possible 

(but in any event within three (3) business days) after any of the following events occur: (i) a 



4 

 

Group Physician’s license to practice medicine in the state of California lapses or is denied, 

suspended, revoked, terminated, relinquished or made subject to terms of probation or other 

restriction; (ii) a Group Physician’s medical staff privileges at KMC or any other health care 

facility are denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, relinquished under threat of disciplinary 

action or made subject to terms of probation or other restriction; (iii) Contractor or a Group 

Physician becomes debarred, excluded, or suspended, or if any other event occurs that makes 

Contractor or Group Physician an Ineligible Person1; (iv) a Group Physician becomes the subject 

of a disciplinary or other proceeding or action before any governmental, professional, medical 

staff or peer review body; or (v) an event occurs that substantially interrupts all or a portion of 

Contractor’s professional practice or that materially adversely affects Contractor’s ability to 

perform its obligations hereunder. 

 

2.12 Credentialing.  Group Physicians shall be credentialed in accordance with the 

KMC medical staff bylaws and policy on Telemedicine, each of which is hereby made a part of 

this Agreement and incorporated herein by this reference.  The parties agree to comply with the 

Medicare conditions of participation set forth in 42 C.F.R. sections 482.12 and 482.22 regarding 

credentialing of Group Physicians.   

 

2.13 Medical Record Documentation.  Contractor shall cause a complete medical 

record to be timely prepared and maintained for each patient seen by a Group Physician 

providing services under this Agreement.  This record shall be prepared in compliance with all 

state and federal regulations, standards of The Joint Commission, and the KMC medical staff 

bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies.  Documentation by Group Physicians will conform to the 

requirements for evaluation and management (E/M) services billed by teaching physicians set 

forth in the Medicare Carriers Manual, Part 3, sections 15016–15018, inclusive. 

 

 2.14 Quality Improvement and Risk Management.  Contractor agrees that all Group 

Physicians shall participate in (i) the quality improvement and risk management programs of 

KMC and serve on such committees as may be required; (ii) ongoing quality improvement 

activities, such as audits, which will be conducted annually in the Department in order to 

evaluate and enhance the quality of patient care; and (iii) risk management activities designed to 

identify, evaluate and reduce the risk of patient injury associated with care.  At a minimum, 

Contractor shall ensure that the quality improvement program consists of the following 

integrated components: (i) professional development that provides continuous performance 

feedback that is benchmarked, evaluated, and rated individually and collectively; (ii) clinical 

standards that are evidence-based and grounded in industry best practices; (iii) performance 

improvement that is outcomes-focused and based on quality indicators/metrics with quarterly 

reporting of same; and (iv) customer satisfaction that is feedback/survey-driven and objectively 

and comparatively measured, tracked/trended, and analyzed.  The appropriate review mechanism 

will be applied in accordance with the provisions of the KMC medical staff bylaws, The Joint 

Commission, and applicable law. 

                                                 
1 An “Ineligible Person” is an individual or entity who: (i) is currently excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise 

ineligible to participate in the federal health care programs or in federal procurement or non-procurement programs; 

or (ii) has been convicted of a criminal offense that falls within the range of activities described in 42 U.S.C. § 

1320a-7(a), but has not yet been excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise declared ineligible. 

 



5 

 

 

2.15 Taxes.  Contractor agrees to file federal and state tax returns and pay all 

applicable taxes on amounts paid pursuant to this Agreement and shall be solely liable and 

responsible to pay such taxes and other obligations, including, but not limited to, state and 

federal income and FICA taxes.  Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold Authority harmless 

from any liability which it may incur to the United States or to the state of California as a 

consequence of Contractor’s failure to pay, when due, all such taxes and obligations.  In case 

Authority is audited for compliance regarding any withholding or other applicable taxes, 

Contractor agrees to furnish Authority with proof of payment of taxes on these earnings. 

 

2.16 Nonexclusive Services.  Contractor understands and agrees that Authority will 

utilize the services of Contractor pursuant to the terms of this Agreement on a non-exclusive 

basis.  Contractor further agrees that Authority shall retain the option to enter into agreements 

with other organizations for purposes of securing the services, in its sole discretion. 

 

3. Obligations of Authority.  

  

3.1 Authority Designee.  Authority shall designate a primary contact, who will 

arrange for KMC staff assistance as may be required.   

 

3.2 Space.  KMC shall furnish for the use of Contractor and Group Physicians such 

space and facilities as may be deemed necessary by KMC for the proper operation and conduct 

of the Department.  KMC shall, in its sole discretion, determine the amount and type of space 

and facilities to be provided herein.  Contractor shall use the space and equipment solely for the 

performance of the Services required under this Agreement.  Neither Contractor nor Group 

Physicians shall use such space or equipment for other business or personal use. 

  

3.3 Use Limitations on Space.  The use of any part of the space occupied by the 

Department for the general or private practice of medicine is prohibited.  Contractor and Group 

Physicians shall use the items furnished under this Agreement only for the performance of 

Services required by this Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be construed to be a lease to 

Contractor or any Group Physician of any portion of the Premises, and insofar as Contractor or 

Group Physicians may use a portion of said Premises, Contractor and Group Physicians do so as 

licensees only, and Authority and KMC shall, at all times, have full and free access to the same. 

 

3.4 Equipment.  Notwithstanding paragraph 2.9 herein, KMC shall furnish for the use 

of the Department such equipment as is deemed necessary by KMC for the proper operation and 

conduct of the Department consistent with community standards.  KMC shall keep and maintain 

this equipment in good order and repair and replace such equipment, as is reasonably necessary 

and subject to the usual purchasing practices of Authority and KMC and budget constraints.    

 

 3.5 Services and Supplies.  KMC shall provide or arrange for the provision of 

janitorial services, housekeeping services, laundry and utilities, together with such other hospital 

services, including medical records, administrative and engineering services, and expendable 

supplies, as KMC deems necessary for the proper operation and conduct of the Department. 

 



6 

 

 

3.6 Patient Information.  KMC shall provide all necessary patient specific information 

in a secure manner (including demographic information and organized relevant medical records) 

and indicate the specific consultation services requested including needed laboratory, pathology 

and/or diagnostic/radiology review.  Every request must include the time frame required for the 

applicable report to be provided.   

 

 3.7 Patient Consent.  KMC shall not forward any patient information without first 

having obtained all appropriate patient written consents and written authorizations required 

under state and federal laws.  KMC shall forward all appropriate patient information in 

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (the 

“Privacy Rule”) and the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health 

Information (the “Security Standards”) issued under the Health Insurance Portability and 

Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), as amended and supplemented from time to time, and 

applicable California law.   

 

3.3 Telemedicine Equipment.  Authority agrees that Contractor’s telemedicine 

equipment shall remain the property of Contractor.  Contractor agrees that KMC’s telemedicine 

equipment shall remain the property of Authority.  Each party shall be responsible for repairs or 

maintenance of their own telemedicine equipment.  Only authorized KMC physicians, KMC 

nursing staff, medical assistants and technical support shall access the telemedicine equipment 

for purposes of the consultations, and under no circumstances shall KMC allow a patient or 

health care provider who is not a KMC physician to access or use the telemedicine equipment to 

contact Contractor for purposes of patient consultations. 

 

3.4 KMC Personnel.  Authority shall employ or otherwise retain all non-physician 

personnel, including nurses, technicians, therapists and clerical personnel necessary for the 

proper operation and conduct of the hospital.  Authority shall ensure that such personnel are 

appropriately trained and certified or licensed as necessary and are covered by KMC’s insurance 

or have obtained equivalent coverage.  Authority shall be solely responsible for satisfying any 

and all obligations for any personnel it retains, employs or contracts with, to assist KMC to 

perform this Agreement.   

 

3.5 Consultations.  KMC understands and agrees that neither Contractor nor Group 

Physicians can provide hands-on medical treatment or services recommended in the remote 

consultations performed through telemedicine to KMC physicians and that KMC physicians are 

solely responsible for providing all such care for KMC patients.  KMC physicians shall have the 

ultimate authority and responsibility for the care and primary diagnosis of each KMC patient.  

No person shall videotape any telemedicine consultation without the prior written consent of 

Contractor.  KMC is solely responsible for obtaining any required patient consents for the 

telemedicine Services and for documenting such consent in the medical record. 

 

3.6 Supplies.  KMC shall ensure that KMC shall be solely responsible for ensuring that 

it maintains supplies, equipment, drugs, and other items necessary to facilitate treatment for 

KMC’s patients in accordance with is normal policies and procedures. 

 



7 

 

3.7 Control Retained in KMC.  In compliance with title 22, California Code of 

Regulations, section 70713 KMC will retain professional and administrative responsibility for 

services rendered under this Agreement.  Contractor shall apprise KMC of recommendations, 

plans for implementation and continuing assessment through dated and signed reports, which 

shall be retained by KMC for follow-up action and evaluation of performance. 

 

4. Payment for Services.   

 

4.1 Compensation.  As consideration for the services provided by Contractor 

hereunder, Authority shall pay Contractor according to the fee schedule set forth in this 

paragraph 4.1.  All services are payable in arrears.  

 

4.1.1 Telemedicine Services.  Contractor shall be paid a per diem rate of $300 

per day. 

 

4.1.2 Neurology Clinic.  Contractor shall be paid a fixed fee in the amount of 

$500 for each scheduled one-half day clinic. 

 

4.1.3 Inpatient Coverage.  Contractor shall be paid a per diem rate of $300 per 

day for scheduled inpatient coverage. 

 

4.1.4 Interventional Radiology Coverage.  Contractor shall be paid a per diem 

rate of $975 per day for interventional radiology coverage. 

 

4.1.5 Non-interventional Radiology Procedures and Studies.  KMC shall have 

the exclusive right and authority to set, bill, collect and retain all fees, including 

professional fees, for non-interventional radiology procedures and studies provided by 

Contractor to KMC patients during the term of this Agreement.  All professional fees 

generated by Contractor for non-interventional radiology procedures and studies rendered 

to patients at KMC or a KMC location during the term of this Agreement, including both 

cash collections and accounts receivable, will be the sole and exclusive property of KMC, 

whether received by KMC or by Contractor and whether received during the term of this 

Agreement or anytime thereafter.  Contractor hereby assigns all rights to said fees and 

accounts to KMC and shall execute all documents required from time to time by KMC 

and otherwise fully cooperate with KMC to enable KMC to collect fees and accounts 

from patients and third-party payers.  Within 30 days after the end of each quarter, KMC 

will calculate the professional fee net collections (defined as actual cash received less any 

billing fee) for such immediately preceding three (3) month period , and adjust the 

payment for professional fee net collections accordingly.  KMC shall retain 40% of the 

professional fee net collections for services related to non-interventional radiology 

procedures and studies.  Authority shall pay Contractor the remaining 60% of the 

professional fee net collections for services related to non-interventional radiology 

procedures and studies.   

 

4.1.6 Didactic Lectures.  Contractor shall be paid a fixed fee in the amount of 

$500 per lecture, which includes preparation time and lecture presentation. 



8 

 

 

4.1.7 Seizure and Epilepsy Monitoring Coverage.  Authority shall pay 

Contractor a fixed fee in the amount of $500,000 per year at the rate of $41,667 per 

month for seizure and epilepsy monitoring coverage provided by Group Physicians in the 

outpatient clinic, ICU, and inpatient epilepsy monitoring unit. 

 

4.1.8 Limitations on Compensation.  The compensation paid to Contractor is 

inclusive of accommodations, mileage reimbursement, car rental, meals, and incidental 

expenses, if any.  Except as expressly stated herein, Contractor shall not receive any 

benefits from Authority, including without limitation, health benefits, sick leave, 

vacation, holidays, deferred compensation or retirement.   

 

4.1.9 Fair Market Value Compensation.  The compensation provided under 

section 4.1 represents the parties’ good faith determination of the reasonable fair market 

value compensation for the services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.  

 

4.2 Maximum Payable.  The maximum compensation payable under this Agreement 

shall not exceed $1,940,000 over the two-year term of this Agreement.   

 

4.3 Invoices.  Invoices for payment shall be submitted in a form approved by KMC 

and list each service performed.  Invoices and receipts shall be sent to KMC for review and 

processing within 60 days of the date of service or payment will not be made.  Payment shall be 

made to Contractor within 30 days of receipt and approval of each invoice by KMC.   

  

4.4 Taxpayer Identification.  To ensure compensation is reported as paid to the proper 

party, Contractor will complete and execute IRS Form W-9 (Exhibit “C,” attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference), which identifies the taxpayer identification number for 

Contractor. 

 

4.5 Professional Fee Billing.  KMC shall have the exclusive right to set, bill, collect 

and retain all fees, including professional fees, for all direct patient care services provided by 

Contractor to KMC patients during the term of this Agreement.  All professional fees generated 

by Contractor for services rendered to KMC patients at KMC or a KMC location during the term 

of this Agreement, including both cash collections and accounts receivable, will be the sole and 

exclusive property of KMC, whether received by KMC or by Contractor and whether received 

during the term of this Agreement or anytime thereafter.  Contractor hereby assigns all rights to 

said fees and accounts to KMC and shall execute all documents required from time to time by 

KMC and otherwise fully cooperate with KMC to enable KMC to collect fees and accounts from 

patients and third-party payers. 

 

4.6 Managed Care Contracting.  Contractor shall cooperate, and shall ensure that 

Group Physicians cooperate, in all reasonable respects necessary to facilitate KMC’s entry into 

or maintenance of any third-party payer arrangements for the provision of services under any 

other public or private health and/or hospital care programs, including but not limited to 

insurance programs, self-funded employer health programs, health care service plans and 

preferred provider organizations.  To enable Authority or KMC to participate in any third-party 



9 

 

payer arrangements, Contractor and/or Group Physicians shall, upon request: (i) enroll as a 

provider (if required by the third-party payer), separate from Authority and KMC, with any third-

party payer or intermediate organization (including any independent practice association) (each, 

a “Managed Care Organization”) designated by Authority or KMC for the provision of 

professional services to patients covered by such Managed Care Organization; (ii) enter into a 

written agreement with such Managed Care Organization as may be necessary or appropriate for 

the provision of professional services to patients covered by such Managed Care Organization; 

and/or (iii) enter into a written agreement with KMC regarding global billing, capitation or other 

payment arrangements as may be necessary or appropriate for the provision of professional 

services to patients covered by such Managed Care Organization. 

 

5. Access to Books and Records.  Contractor shall make available, upon written request 

from Authority or KMC, the Secretary of Health and Human Services, the Comptroller General 

of the United States, or any other duly authorized agent or representative, this Agreement, and 

Contractor’s books, documents and records.  Contractor shall preserve and make available such 

books, documents and records for a period of seven (7) years after the termination or expiration 

of this Agreement.  If Contractor is requested to disclose books, documents or records pursuant 

to this section for any purpose, Contractor shall notify KMC of the nature and scope of the 

request, and Contractor shall make available, upon written request of KMC, all such books, 

documents or records.   

 

6. Anti-referral Laws.  Contractor acknowledges that it is subject to certain federal and 

state laws governing the referral of patients, which are in effect during the term of this 

Agreement.  These laws include (i) prohibitions on payments for referral or to induce the referral 

of patients, and (ii) the referral of patients by a physician for certain designated health care 

services to an entity with which the physician (or his or her immediate family) has a financial 

relationship (Cal. Business and Professions Code sections 650 et seq.; Cal. Labor Code sections 

139.3 and 139.31; section 1128B (b) of the Social Security Act; and section 1877 of the Social 

Security Act).  The parties expressly agree that nothing contained in this Agreement shall require 

either the referral of any patients to, or order of any goods or services from Contractor or KMC.  

Notwithstanding any unanticipated effect of any provision of this Agreement, neither party shall 

knowingly or intentionally conduct itself in such a manner as to violate the prohibition against 

fraud and abuse in connection with the Medicare and Medicaid programs (42 U.S.C. section 

1320a-7b). 

 

7. Assignment.  Contractor shall not assign, delegate, sublet, or transfer any interest in or 

duty under this Agreement.  Contractor shall not assign any money due or which becomes due to 

Contractor under this Agreement without the prior written approval of Authority. 

 

8.  Audits, Inspection and Retention of Records.  Contractor agrees to maintain and make 

available to Authority accurate books and records relative to all its activities under this 

Agreement.  Contractor shall permit Authority to audit, examine and make excerpts and 

transcripts from such records, and to conduct audits or reviews of all invoices, materials, records 

or personnel or other data related to all other matters covered by this Agreement.  Contractor 

shall maintain such data and records in an accessible location and condition for a period of not 

less than four (4) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement, or until after the 



10 

 

conclusion of any audit, whichever occurs last.  The state of California or any federal agency 

having an interest in the subject of this Agreement shall have the same rights conferred upon 

Authority herein. 

 

9. Authority to Incur Financial Obligation.  It is understood that neither Contractor nor 

Group Physicians, in the performance of any and all duties under this Agreement, has no right, 

power or authority to bind Authority to any agreements or undertakings. 

 

10. Captions.  The captions in this Agreement are solely for convenience of reference. They 

are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect on its construction or interpretation.  

 

11. Change in Law.  In the event that a change in state or federal law or regulatory 

requirement (or the application thereof), any of which renders this Agreement illegal, impossible 

to perform, or commercially impracticable, the parties agree to negotiate immediately, in good 

faith, any necessary or appropriate amendments(s) to the terms of this Agreement.  If the parties 

fail to reach a mutually agreeable amendment within 30 days of such negotiation period, this 

Agreement shall automatically terminate at the end of such 30-day period. 

 

12. Choice of Law/Venue.  The parties hereto agree that the provisions of this Agreement 

will be construed pursuant to the laws of the state of California.  It is expressly acknowledged 

that this Agreement has been entered into and will be performed within the County of Kern.  

Should any suit or action be commenced to enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement or 

any claim arising under it, it is expressly agreed that proper venue shall be in County of Kern, 

state of California.   

 

13. Compliance with Law.  Contractor shall observe and comply with all applicable 

Authority, local, state and federal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations now in effect or 

hereafter enacted, each of which is hereby made a part hereof and incorporated herein by 

reference. 

 

14. Compliance Program.  Contractor acknowledges that KMC has implemented a 

compliance program for the purpose of ensuring adherence to applicable federal and state laws, 

regulations and other standards.  Contractor agrees that in the course of performance of its duties 

described herein that it shall act, and cause its employees to act, in conformance with the policies 

set forth therein.  KMC shall make available such information relating to its compliance program 

as is appropriate to assist Contractor in adhering to the policies set forth in the compliance 

program.  Contractor and its employees shall participate in compliance training and education as 

reasonably requested by KMC.   

 

15. Confidentiality. 

 

15.1 Use and Disclosure Restrictions.  Neither party shall, without the written consent 

of the other, communicate confidential information of the other, designated in writing or 

identified in this Agreement as such, to any third party and shall protect such information from 

inadvertent disclosure to any third party in the same manner that the receiving party would 

protect its own confidential information.  The foregoing obligations will not restrict either party 



11 

 

from disclosing confidential information of the other party: (i) pursuant to applicable law; (ii) 

pursuant to the order or requirement of a court, administrative agency, or other governmental 

body, on condition that the party required to make such a disclosure gives reasonable written 

notice to the other party to contest such order or requirement; and (iii) on a confidential basis to 

its legal or financial advisors.   

 

15.2 Trade Secrets.  The parties acknowledges that each party, in connection with its 

business, has developed certain operating manuals, symbols, trademarks, trade names, service 

marks, designs, patient lists, procedures, processes, and other copyrighted, patented, 

trademarked, or legally protectable information which is confidential and proprietary to the party 

that constitute its trade secrets.  The parties shall not use any name, symbol, mark, or other 

proprietary information of the other party except as expressly permitted. 
 

15.3 Medical Records.  The parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of all medical 

records pertaining to the provision of services under this Agreement in accordance with 

applicable federal and state laws and regulations including, but not limited to, the California 

Confidentiality of Medical Records Information Act, codified at section 56.1 of the California 

Civil Code, California Evidence Code sections 1156 and 1157, and the Health Insurance 

Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and its implementing regulations.   

  

 15.4 Medical Staff and Committee Records.  All records, files, proceedings and related 

information of Group Physicians, KMC and the medical staff and it committees pertaining to the 

evaluation and improvements of the quality of patient care at KMC shall be kept strictly 

confidential by Contractor and Group Physicians.  Neither Contractor nor Group Physicians shall 

voluntarily disclose such confidential information, either orally or in writing, except as expressly 

required by law or pursuant to written authorization by KMC, which may be given or withheld in 

the sole discretion of KMC. 

 

15.5 Ownership of Records.  All documents, papers, notes, memoranda, computer files 

and other written or electronic records of any kind (“Documents”), in whatever form or format, 

assembled, prepared or utilized by Contractor or Group Physicians during and in connection with 

this Agreement shall remain the property of Authority at all times.  Upon the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall promptly deliver to Authority all such 

Documents, which have not already been provided to Authority in such form or format, as 

Authority deems appropriate.  Such Documents shall be and will remain the property of 

Authority without restriction or limitation.  Contractor may retain copies of the above-described 

Documents but agrees not to disclose or discuss any information gathered, discovered, or 

generated in any way through this Agreement without the express written permission of 

Authority. 

 

 15.6 Non-disparagement.  Each party agrees that it shall not make or cause to be made, 

any written (including, but not limited to, any emails, internet postings, remarks or statements) or 

verbal assertions, statements or other communications regarding the other party’s business or 

each other which may be in any manner whatsoever defamatory, detrimental or unfavorable to 

such other party.  Each party agrees that these non-disparagement covenants shall survive the 

termination of this Agreement. 

 



12 

 

16. Conflict of Interest.   Contractor covenants that it has no interest and that it will not 

acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state 

law or that would otherwise conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of its services 

hereunder.  Contractor further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement no person 

having any such interests shall be employed.  It is understood and agreed that if such a financial 

interest does exist at the inception of this Agreement, Authority may immediately terminate this 

Agreement by giving written notice thereof.   

 

17. Consent.  Wherever in this Agreement the consent or approval of one party is required to 

an act of the other party, such consent or approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

 

18. Construction.  To the fullest extent allowed by law, the provisions of this Agreement 

shall be construed and given effect in a manner that avoids any violation of statute, ordinance, 

regulation, or law.  The parties covenant and agree that in the event that any provision of this 

Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the 

remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be 

affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby.  Contractor and Authority acknowledge that they have 

each contributed to the making of this Agreement and that, in the event of a dispute over the 

interpretation of this Agreement, the language of the Agreement will not be construed against 

one party in favor of the other.  Contractor and Authority acknowledge that they have each had 

an adequate opportunity to consult with counsel in the negotiation and preparation of this 

Agreement.  

 

19. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute 

one and the same instrument. 

 

20. Disqualified Persons.  The parties mutually represent and warrant to one another that 

they and their respective representatives are not: (i) currently excluded, debarred, or otherwise 

ineligible to participate in the federal health care programs as defined in 42 U.S.C. section 

1320a-7b-(f) (the “Federal health care programs”) and/or present on the exclusion database of 

the Office of the Inspector General (“OIG”) or the Government Services Administration 

(“GSA”); (ii) convicted of a criminal offense related to the provision of health care items or 

services but have not yet been excluded, debarred, or otherwise declared ineligible to participate 

in the Federal health care programs; or (iii) debarred, suspended, excluded or disqualified by any 

federal governmental agency or department or otherwise declared ineligible from receiving 

federal contracts or federally approved subcontracts or from receiving federal financial and 

nonfinancial assistance and benefits.  This shall be an ongoing representation and warranty 

during the term of this Agreement and a party shall immediately notify the other party of any 

change in the status of any of the representations and/or warranties set forth in this section.  Any 

breach of this section shall give the non-breaching party the right to terminate this Agreement 

immediately upon written notice. 

 

21. Enforcement of Remedies.  No right or remedy herein conferred on or reserved to 

Authority is exclusive of any other right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided or 

permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other right or remedy given hereunder or now or 



13 

 

hereafter existing by law or in equity or by statute or otherwise, and may be enforced 

concurrently or from time to time. 

 

22. Immigration Compliance.  Contractor shall comply with all provisions of immigration 

law with respect to hiring, recruiting or referring for employment persons whose authorization 

for employment in the United States has been verified, and shall provide KMC with a copy of 

such verification required in 8 USCA section 1324a.  Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend, 

and hold harmless Authority, its agents, officers, and employees, from any liability, damages, or 

causes of action arising out of Contractor’s failure to comply with this section 22. 

 

23. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  Authority shall assume liability for and 

indemnify and hold Contractor and Group Physicians harmless from any and all claims, losses, 

expenses, costs, actions, settlements, attorneys’ fees and judgments incurred by Contractor or 

Group Physicians or for which Contractor or Group Physicians becomes liable, arising out of or 

related to professional services rendered or which a third party alleges should have been rendered 

by Contractor or Group Physicians pursuant to this Agreement.  Authority’s obligation under this 

paragraph shall extend from the Effective Date and shall survive termination or expiration of this 

Agreement to include all claims that allegedly arise out of professional services Contractor or 

Group Physicians rendered on behalf of Authority; provided, however, that the provisions of this 

paragraph shall not apply to any services rendered at any location other than KMC without 

approval by the Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors and, provided further, that 

Authority shall have no duty or obligation to defend, indemnify or hold Contractor or Group 

Physicians harmless for any conduct or misconduct found to be intentional, willful, grossly 

negligent, or criminal. 

 

24. Independent Contractor.  In the performance of the services under this Agreement, 

Contractor shall be, and acknowledges that Contractor is in fact and law, an independent 

contractor and not an agent or employee of Authority.  Contractor has and retains the right to 

exercise full supervision and control over the manner and methods of providing services to 

Authority under this Agreement.  Contractor retains full supervision and control over the 

employment, direction, compensation and discharge of all persons assisting Contractor in the 

provision of services under this Agreement.  With respect to Contractor’s employees, if any, 

Contractor shall be solely responsible for payment of wages, benefits and other compensation, 

compliance with all occupational safety, welfare and civil rights laws, tax withholding and 

payment of employment taxes whether federal, state or local, and compliance with any and all 

other laws regulating employment. 

 

25. Informal Dispute Resolution.  Controversies between the parties with respect to this 

Agreement, or the rights of either party, or with respect to any transaction contemplated by this 

Agreement, shall be resolved, to the extent possible, by informal meetings and discussions 

among appropriate representatives of the parties. 

 

26. Insurance.  With respect to performance of work under this Agreement, Contractor shall 

maintain and shall require all of its subcontractors, consultants, and other agents to maintain, 

insurance as described in Exhibit “D,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 



14 

 

 

 

27. Modifications of Agreement.  This Agreement may be modified in writing only, signed 

by the parties in interest at the time of the modification. 

 

28. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  It is expressly understood and agreed that the 

enforcement of this Agreement and all rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be 

strictly reserved to Authority and Contractor.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall give or 

allow any claim or right of action whatsoever by any other third person.  It is the express 

intention of Authority and Contractor that any such person or entity, other than Authority or 

Contractor, receiving services or benefits under this Agreement shall be deemed an incidental 

beneficiary only. 

 

29. Non-appropriation.  Authority reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in the 

event insufficient funds are appropriated or budgeted for this Agreement in any fiscal year.  

Upon such termination, Authority will be released from any further financial obligation to 

Contractor, except for services performed prior to the date of termination or any liability due to 

any default existing at the time this clause is exercised.  Contractor will be given 30 days’ prior 

written notice in the event that Authority requires such an action. 

 

30. Non-collusion Covenant.  Contractor represents and agrees that it has in no way entered 

into any contingent fee arrangement with any firm or person concerning the obtaining of this 

Agreement with Authority.  Contractor has received from Authority no incentive or special 

payments, nor considerations, not related to the provision of services under this Agreement. 

 

31. Nondiscrimination.  Neither Contractor, nor any officer, agent, employee, servant or 

subcontractor of Contractor shall discriminate in the treatment or employment of any individual 

or groups of individuals on the grounds of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, 

actual or perceived sexual orientation, marital status, age, pregnancy, medical condition, 

handicap or other prohibited basis, either directly, indirectly or through contractual or other 

arrangements. 

 

32. Non-waiver.  No covenant or condition of this Agreement can be waived except by the 

written consent of Authority.  Forbearance or indulgence by Authority in any regard whatsoever 

shall not constitute a waiver of the covenant or condition to be performed by Contractor.  

Authority shall be entitled to invoke any remedy available to Authority under this Agreement or 

by law or in equity despite said forbearance or indulgence. 

 

33. Notices.  Notices to be given by one party to the other under this Agreement shall be 

given in writing by personal delivery, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or express 

delivery service at the addresses specified below.  Notices delivered personally shall be deemed 

received upon receipt; mailed or expressed notices shall be deemed received four (4) days after 

deposit.  A party may change the address to which notice is to be given by giving notice as 

provided above. 

 

 



15 

 

Notice to Contractor: Notice to Authority: 

  

United Neuroscience, Inc. Kern Medical Center 

11622 Harrington Street 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Bakersfield, California 93311 Bakersfield, California 93306 

Attn.: Its President Attn.: Chief Executive Officer 

 

34. Signature Authority.  Each party represents that they have full power and authority to 

enter into and perform this Agreement, and the person(s) signing this Agreement on behalf of 

each party has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement. 

 

35. Sole Agreement.  This Agreement, including all attachments hereto, contains the entire 

agreement between the parties relating to the services, rights, obligations and covenants 

contained herein and assumed by the parties respectively.  No inducements, representations or 

promises have been made, other than those recited in this Agreement.  No oral promise, 

modification, change or inducement shall be effective or given any force or effect. 

 

36. Termination.   

 

36.1 Termination with Cause.  Either party may terminate this Agreement in the event 

of a material breach by the other; provided, however, the termination for the breach of this 

Agreement will not become effective unless and until the party not in default, has given the other 

party written notice of breach, which notice shall state the general nature of the breach, and the 

party allegedly in default will thereafter have a period of 30 days following the giving of said 

notice in which to remedy the default to the reasonable satisfaction of the other party.  If the 

alleged default is of the kind that cannot be cured within 30 days, then the party allegedly in 

default will have an additional 30 days in which to remedy the breach as long as such party is 

acting in good faith and using diligent efforts to remedy such breach throughout the cure period. 

 

36.2 Termination without Cause.  Either party may terminate this Agreement, without 

cause, upon 120 days’ prior written notice to the other party.   

 

36.3 Immediate Termination.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Authority shall have the 

right to terminate this Agreement effective immediately after giving written notice to Contractor, 

for any of the following reasons: (i) Authority determines that Contractor does not have the 

proper credentials, experience or skill to perform the required services under this Agreement; (ii) 

continuation by Contractor in the providing of services may result in civil, criminal, or monetary 

penalties against Authority or KMC; (iii) the violation of any federal or state law or regulatory 

rule or regulation or condition of accreditation or certification to which Authority or KMC is 

subject; (iv) an unauthorized use or disclosure of confidential or proprietary information by 

Contractor which causes material harm to Authority or KMC; (v) commission of a material act 

involving moral turpitude, fraud, dishonesty, embezzlement, misappropriation or financial 

dishonesty by Contractor against Authority or KMC; (vi) the loss or threatened loss of KMC’s 

ability to participate in any federal or state health care program, including Medicare or Medi-Cal, 

due to the actions of Contractor; or (vii) the failure of Contractor to cure a default within the time 

allowed in paragraph 36.1. 



16 

 

37. Effect of Termination.   

 

37.1 Payment Obligations.  In the event of termination of this Agreement for any 

reason, Authority shall have no further obligation to pay for any services rendered or expenses 

incurred by Contractor after the effective date of the termination, and Contractor shall be entitled 

to receive compensation for services satisfactorily rendered, calculated on a prorated basis up to 

the effective date of termination.   

 

 37.2 Vacate Premises.  Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, 

Contractor shall immediately vacate KMC, removing at such time any and all personal property 

of Contractor.  Authority may remove and store, at Contractor’s expense, any personal property 

that Contractor has not so removed. 

  

 37.3 No Interference.  Following the expiration or earlier termination of this 

Agreement, Contractor shall not do anything or cause any person to do anything that might 

interfere with any efforts by Authority to contract with any other individual or entity for the 

provision of services or to interfere in any way with any relationship between Authority and any 

provider that may replace Contractor. 

  

 37.4 No Hearing Rights.  Termination of this Agreement by Authority or KMC for any 

reason shall not provide Contractor or Group Physicians the right to a fair hearing or the other 

rights more particularly set forth in the KMC medical staff bylaws. 

 

38. Time of Essence.  Time is hereby expressly declared to be of the essence of this 

Agreement and of each and every provision hereof, and each such provision is hereby made and 

declared to be a material, necessary and essential part of this Agreement. 

 

39. Liability of Authority.  The liabilities or obligations of Authority with respect to its 

activities pursuant to this Agreement shall be the liabilities or obligations solely of Authority and 

shall not be or become the liabilities or obligations of the County of Kern or any other entity, 

including the state of California. 

 

[Signatures follow on next page] 



17 

 

IN WITNESS TO THE FOREGOING, the parties have executed this Agreement as of 

the day and year first written above. 

 

UNITED NEUROSCIENCE, INC. 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    Kiron Thomas, M.D. 

    Its President 

 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    Chairman 

    Board of Governors     

 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    Russell V. Judd 

    Chief Executive Officer 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    VP & General Counsel 

    Kern County Hospital Authority 

 

 

 
Agreement.United Neuroscience.090619 

 

      

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  



18 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

United Neuroscience, Inc. 

 

1. Telemedicine Coverage: 

a) Designated Group Physicians shall provide expertise related to various stroke and 

cerebrovascular diseases via telemedicine services. 

b) Designated Group Physicians shall provide emergency department and inpatient stroke 

coverage for 24 hours per day, 365 days per year. 

c) Designated Group Physicians agree to provide telemedicine services in one (1) week 

blocks.  

d) A monthly call schedule shall be prepared by Contractor and sent seven (7) days prior to 

the beginning of each month.  Changes to the call schedule may be made from time-to-

time.  The call schedule shall be sent to KMC via e-mail. 

e) Contractor and Designated Group Physicians agree to evaluate all patients regardless of 

their ability to pay.  

 

2. PSC Certification: 

a) Contractor shall support KMC in its efforts to maintain a primary stroke center (“PSC”) 

accredited by The Joint Commission. 

b) PSC certification requires a physician champion for accreditation by The Joint 

Commission (“Certification”).  KMC has a neurologist on its medical staff who serves as 

the medical director.  Contractor agrees to assign a Designated Group Physician to serve 

as medical director if necessary.   

c) PSC Certification requires a nurse practitioner or registered nurse to serve as the stroke 

coordinator for data collection, quality improvement, and program coordination.  KMC 

shall assign a registered nurse or nurse practitioner to serve as the stroke coordinator. 

 

3. Systems of Care: 

a) An initial request for consultation via telemedicine will made via cell phone or text page.  

b) Once a request is made, the Designated Group Physician on-call will evaluate the patient 

via telemedicine. 

c) A response time of 15 minutes is expected between the initial request for consultation and 

the telemedicine evaluation. 

d) Neuroimaging will be available via the KMC web-based PACS system to each 

Designated Group Physician, or the images will be made available via a high definition 

web-based camera.   

e) Once the patient has been evaluated, a recommendation for tissue plasminogen activator 

(tPA) or endovascular clot retrieval will be made. 

f) Designated Group Physicians may recommend the patient for transfer if tPA is given or 

endovascular clot retrieval is recommended.  However, the decision to transfer a patient 

remains at the discretion of the KMC physician. 

g) If the patient is admitted to KMC, admission orders will be written by the KMC 

physician. 

h) Following consultation, the on-call Designated Group Physician will dictate a procedure 

note into the KMC EHR within 24 hours.  



19 

 

4. Inpatient Stroke Consultations and Follow-up: 

a) Designated Group Physicians shall provide inpatient consultative services for ward and 

ICU patients that display symptoms of acute stroke.  

b) The Systems of Care outlined in section 3 above shall apply to ward and ICU 

consultations.  

 

5. Academic Standing: To maintain the highest quality of stroke care, all designated Group 

Physicians shall obtain eight (8) CME credits related to stroke care each year (e.g., acute, sub-

acute, rehabilitation, secondary prevention)  

 

6. Outpatient Neurology Clinic Coverage: Contractor and Group Physicians shall provide 

clinic coverage no fewer than five (5) one-half days each week (except holidays), inclusive of the 

four (4) one-half day clinics required of the Medical Director as set forth in section 10 below.  

Outpatient neurology clinics may occur with each patient evaluated in the presence of a resident 

or medical student or as non-resident clinics as assigned by the Department chair and/or KMC 

administration.  Outpatient neurology clinic services shall be a combination of general 

neurology, epilepsy, and other neurology services, which shall be mutually agreed upon by 

Contractor, the Department chair, and KMC administration. 

 

7. Inpatient Neurology Coverage: Contractor and Group Physicians shall provide 

mutually agreed upon daily staff coverage when other neurology faculty at KMC is unavailable, 

for inpatient consultative rounds on medical/surgical and ICU patients, with on-service resident 

physicians and medical students when present. 

 

8. Other Neurology Clinical Responsibilities: Contractor and Group Physicians shall 

provide interpretation of adult electroencephalograms, nerve conduction studies, and 

electromyelograms as mutually agreed upon with the Department chair. 

 

9. Interventional Radiology Coverage: Contractor shall provide call coverage 24 hours 

per day, 365 days per year, including without limitation, interventional radiology coverage for 

the neurology service.  Contractor shall provide a monthly schedule of covering Group 

Physicians by the 20th day of each month.  Group Physician(s) shall be available by telephone to 

answer questions and for on-site consultations when requested.  Group Physicians shall perform 

neuro-interventional radiology procedures as indicated by the patient’s condition.  Group 

Physician(s) shall coordinate with the Department of Radiology to optimize the use and service 

of the interventional radiology suite.   

 

10. Seizure and Epilepsy Monitoring Coverage:  

a) Contractor shall assign a Designated Group Physician to serve as the Medical Director of 

the Epilepsy Monitoring Unit (EMU) and Epilepsy Program.  Designated Group 

Physician shall be Hari Prasad Kunhi Veedu, M.D. 

b) The Medical Director or other Group Physicians shall provide clinical services in support 

of the EMU and Epilepsy Program as follows: 

 Provide daily neurology coverage in the EMU, ICU/DOU, and inpatient wards for 

patients receiving continuous EEG monitoring and/or Epilepsy Program patients. 

 



20 

 

 

 Provide clinic coverage no fewer than four (4) one-half days each week (except 

holidays) for the Epilepsy Program and general neurology outpatient clinic coverage.  

Outpatient clinics may occur with each patient evaluated in the presence of a resident 

or medical student or as non-resident clinics as assigned by the Department chair 

and/or KMC administration.  Outpatient neurology clinic services shall include a 

combination of general neurology, epilepsy, and other neurology services, which 

shall be mutually agreed upon by Contractor, the Department chair, and KMC 

administration. 

 Provide professional interpretation of EEG for patients in the EMU, ICU/DOU and 

other inpatient units, as well as all other ambulatory and clinic settings. 

 Provide supervision of residents, medical students and mid-level practitioners. 

 Provide electronic or telephonic consultation on an as-needed basis. 

c) The Medical Director shall: 

 Work collaboratively with KMC staff and physicians to achieve accreditation by the 

National Association of Epilepsy Centers (NAEC) as a Level 4 center by January 1, 

2020, in accordance with the 2018 NAEC Accreditation Criteria for Level 4 Centers 

set forth in Exhibit “A-1,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 Provide leadership and clinical oversight of the epilepsy center. 

 Provider leadership and support for the education and training of the medical and 

clinical staff involved in epilepsy care. 

 Provide leadership and support in the development of written care protocols and 

obtain approval of such protocols through appropriate KMC medical staff 

committees. 

 Provide oversight to coordinate performance improvement activities. 

 Participate in and support KMC academic programs that relate to epilepsy program 

teaching and research. 

 Participate in a leadership role at KMC and in the community. 

 Work to ensure excellent care through chart review, direction observation, and data 

analysis. 

 

11. Medical Education, Teaching, and Academic Responsibilities: Contractor and Group 

Physicians shall: 

a) Provide clinical mentoring to and evaluation of residents and medical students. 

b) Supervise residents and medical students assigned to the neurology service. 

c) Obtain academic appointment at David Geffen School of Medicine at University of 

California, Los Angeles, or one or more California-based medical schools, and maintain 

such appointment throughout the term of this Agreement. 

d) Provide up to 12 didactic and Department lectures as assigned by the Department 

program director and based upon standard curriculum. 

e) Provide medical education to residents and medical students during inpatient rounds. 

f) Provide medical education in the clinic setting. 

g) Serve as attending faculty in the Department. 

 

12. Service Expectations: 



21 

 

a) Contractor and Group Physicians shall perform all services for KMC patients, including 

but not limited to neuro-interventional radiology procedures, electroencephalograms, 

nerve conduction studies, and electromyelograms at KMC or a KMC location, as 

appropriate.  Procedures and studies for KMC patients performed at non-KMC locations 

must be pre-approved by KMC in advance of the procedure.  Contractor shall require that 

Group Physicians report on time for all scheduled procedures.  Outpatient neurology 

clinic services may be performed at any KMC designated site. 

b) Telemedicine services shall commence no later than October 1, 2105.  Outpatient 

neurology clinic coverage shall commence no later than November 1, 2105.  Neuro-

interventional radiology coverage shall commence no later than January 1, 2016. 

 

13. Administrative Responsibilities:  Contractor shall require that Group Physicians: 

a) Attend Department staff meetings and the annual medical staff meeting. 

b) Participate in medical staff committees as assigned by the president of the medical staff. 

 

 

[Intentionally left blank] 



23 

 

EXHIBIT “A-1” 

2018 NAEC ACCREDITATION CRITERIA FOR LEVEL 4 CENTERS 

 

[See attached] 

 

  



24 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

DESIGNATED GROUP PHYSICIANS 

 

Name       

 

Kiron Thomas, M.D. 

Hari Prasad Hunhi Veedu, M.D. 

Venkata Dandamdi, M.D. 

 

  



25 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

 

IRS FORM W-9 

  



26 

 

EXHIBIT “D” 

INSURANCE 

 

With respect to performance of work under this Agreement, Contractor shall maintain and shall 

require all of its subcontractors, consultants, and other agents to maintain insurance as described 

below unless such insurance has been expressly waived in writing by Authority.  Any 

requirement for insurance to be maintained after completion of the work shall survive the 

termination or expiration of this Agreement.   

 

Authority reserves the right to review any and all of the required insurance policies and/or 

endorsements, but has no obligation to do so.  Failure to demand evidence of full compliance 

with the insurance requirements set forth in this Agreement or failure to identify any insurance 

deficiency shall not relieve Contractor from, nor be construed or deemed a waiver of, its 

obligation to maintain the required insurance at all times during the performance of this 

Agreement. 

 

 1. Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance:  

(a) Required if Contractor has employees.  If Contractor currently has no employees, 

Contractor’s written confirmation of such will be required before execution of this 

Agreement.  If Contractor engages any employees during the term of this 

Agreement or any extensions thereof, Contractor agrees to obtain the specified 

Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability insurance.   

(b) Workers’ Compensation insurance with statutory limits as required by the California 

Labor Code.   

(c) Employers Liability with limits of $1,000,000 per Accident; $1,000,000 Disease per 

employee; $1,000,000 Disease per policy.   

(d) Waiver of Subrogation: The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a 

waiver of subrogation in favor of Authority for all work performed by Contractor, its 

employees, agents and subcontractors. 

(e) Required Evidence of Insurance: Certificate of Insurance. 
 

2. Automobile Liability Insurance: 

(a) Minimum Limits: $250,000 per person for bodily injury; $500,000 per incident for 

bodily injury; $250,000 per incident property damage. 

(b) Insurance shall apply to all Owned autos.  If Contractor currently owns no autos, 

Contractor agrees to obtain such insurance should any autos be acquired during the 

term of this Agreement or any extensions thereof. 

(c) Insurance shall include coverage for Non-Owned and Hired autos.  (See 

requirements in section 1(c) above if there is no separate Automobile Liability 

coverage.) 

(d) Authority shall be named as an additional insured for liability arising out of 

operations by or on behalf of Contractor in the performance of this Agreement.  See 

section 5 for full Additional Insured wording.  

(e) Required Evidence of Insurance: Certificate of Insurance. 

 

3. Standards for Insurance Companies: Insurers shall have an A.M. Best’s rating of at least 

A;VII. 



27 

 

4. Additional Insured Wording: “Kern County Hospital Authority, its officers, officials, 

employees and volunteers” are to be named as Additional Insureds as per each section 

where noted above.   

 

5. Claims Made Policies: If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made 

basis: 

(a) The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the Effective Date of the 

Agreement or the beginning of contract work. 

(b) Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at 

least five (5) years after completion of the contract work. 

(c) If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made 

policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, Contractor 

must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after 

completion of the contract work. 

 

6. Documentation: 

(a) The Certificate of Insurance must include the following reference: “Agreement for 

Professional Services.”  
(b) All required Evidence of Insurance shall be submitted prior to the execution of this 

Agreement.  Contractor agrees to maintain current Evidence of Insurance on file 

with Authority for the entire term of this Agreement and any additional periods if 

specified in sections 1 or 2 above. 

(c) The name and address for the Certificates of Insurance and Additional Insured 

endorsements is Kern County Hospital Authority, c/o Kern Medical Center, 1700 

Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California 93306.                                                                     

(d) Required Evidence of Insurance shall be submitted for any renewal or replacement 

of a policy that already exists, at least 10 days before expiration or other termination 

of the existing policy. 

(e) Contractor shall provide immediate written notice if: (i) any of the required 

insurance policies is terminated; (ii) the limits of any of the required policies are 

reduced; or (iii) the deductible or self-insured retention is increased.   

(f) Upon written request, certified copies of required insurance policies must be 

provided to Authority within 30 days. 

 

7. Policy Obligations: Contractor’s indemnity and other obligations shall not be limited by 

the foregoing insurance requirements. 

 

8. Material Breach: If Contractor fails to maintain the insurance required by this Agreement, 

it shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement.  Authority, at its sole option, may 

terminate this Agreement and obtain damages from Contractor resulting from said breach.  

Alternatively, Authority may purchase the required insurance, and without further notice 

to Contractor, Authority may deduct from sums due to Contractor any premium costs 

advanced by Authority for such insurance.  These remedies shall be in addition to any 

other remedies available to Authority. 

 

[Intentionally left blank] 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
September 18, 2019 
  
Subject:  Proposed Work Order Agreement No. 3 with Leidos Health, LLC, for Elbow‐to‐Elbow Support 
Services regarding the Cerner Millennium Project’s Implementation Go‐Live. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Work Order Agreement No. 3 with Leidos Health, LLC, 
for elbow‐to‐elbow support resources for the November 1, 2019 Cerner Electronic Health Record implementation.   
Leidos Health, LLC will provide on‐the‐spot provider, acute, and ambulatory conversion support. Leidos Health, 
LLC staff will be on hand to support staff as they begin to use the new Cerner Electronic Health Record.  These 
support services will be provided between October 31 and November 14, 2019. 
 
Kern Medical engaged two vendors  in  the decision‐making process and after  lengthy review, determined that 
Leidos Health, LLC to be the best strategic decision for Kern Medical. 
 
Leidos Health LLC’s professional fees for this engagement will be billed on a Time and Materials Basis at the rate(s) 
set forth below: 
 

Resource(s)/Count 
 

Rate per hour  Estimated Fees  Estimated Expenses 

Project Coordinator – (1)  Expenses only  0.00  $3,400.00 

Project Leads – (3) 
(1 for every 25 elbow support) 

$55.00  $27,555.00  $11,900.00 

Elbow Support  
(Approx. 77) 

$66.00  $678,282.00  $299,200.00 

Estimated Totals $705,837.00  $314,500.00 

Total Project Estimate $1,020,337.00 

 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Leidos Health Work Order Agreement No. 3 for elbow‐
to‐elbow support services for the period October 31, 2019 through November 14, 2019, effective September 18, 
2019, in the not‐to‐exceed amount of $1,020,337.00, and authorize the Chairman to sign. 







 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  
September 18, 2019 
  
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 7 to Agreement for Professional Consulting Services with Healthcare 
Performance Group, Inc. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern  Medical  requests  that  your  Board  approve  the  proposed  Amendment  No.  7  to  the  Agreement  for 
Professional Consulting Services with Healthcare Performance Group, Inc. (HPG), in the amount of $342,160, for 
a total revised Agreement amount of $1,987,864 to provide extensions of professional services with HPG staff 
who are currently providing support services required to meet the Cerner Millennium electronic health record 
(EHR) project. 
 
 

Previous Agreements  Purpose of Amendment  Variance 

Original Agreement, dated May 
7, 2018 – Agt.#14818 

Schedule A‐1, Jacqui Pada, EHR Consultant for Clinical 
and Nursing Support 

$232,576 

Amendment No. 1, dated 
September 19, 2018 – Agt.# 
062‐2018 

Schedule A‐2,  Kayla Smith, EHR Consultant for HIM and 
3M Support 

$217,000 

Amendment No. 2, dated 
January 16, 2019 – Agt.#005‐
2019 

Schedule A‐3, Nicole Van Luchene, EHR Consultant for 
Informatics and Physician Adoption Support 

$300,240 

Amendment No. 3, dated 
March 20, 2019 – Agt.#018‐
2019  

Amendment to Schedule  A‐1, EHR Consultant for 
Clinical and Nursing Support 

$203,896 

Amendment No. 4, dated May 
15, 2019 – Agt.#023‐2019 

Schedule A‐5 
Diane Justice – Clinical Application Expertise ‐ April 1, 
2019 thru August 30, 2019 ‐ $146,776 
Schedule A‐6 
Elizabeth (Betsy) Hlavac – Clinical Application Expertise – 
April 8, 2019 thru August 30, 2019 ‐ $140,104 
Schedule A‐7 
Kim Green – Clinical Application Expertise – April 15, 
2019 thru August 30, 2019 ‐ $133,432 
Jacqui Pada’s Extension – Clinical Application Expertise – 
November 29, 2019 thru December 20, 2019 –  
$17,920. 

$643,720 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Kayla Smith’s Extension – Cerner Millennium HIM – June 
10 thru December 20, 2019 ‐ $185,472 
Nicole Van Luchene’s Extension – Clinical Informatics 
Expertise – November 29, 2019 thru December 20, 2019 
‐ $20,016. 
 

Amendment No. 5, dated July 
17, 2019 – Agt.#043‐2019 

Schedule A‐8 Maria Negrete – Additional Clinical 
Informatics Expertise – June 3, 2019 thru August 2, 2019. 
 

$40,088 

Amendment No. 6, dated July 
29, 2019 – Agt.#38019 

Schedule A‐9 Ramona Hamilton –Informatics and 
Physician Adoption Support – Replacement for Nicole 
Van Luchene – no additional cost 

$0 

Proposed Amendment No. 7, 
dated September 18,  2019 

Schedule A‐10: ‐ $105,680 
Betsy Hlavac extension ‐ Clinical Application Expertise  
(9/1/19 thru 12/20/19) ‐ 640 hours x $137.00 and travel 
expenses. 
Schedule A‐11: $105,680 
Kim Green extension ‐ Clinical Application Expertise  
(9/1/19 thru 12/20/19) ‐ 640 hours x $137.00 and travel 
expenses. 
Schedule A‐12: $130,800 
Maria Negrete extension – Clinical Informatics Expertise 
(8/3/19 thru 12/20/19) ‐ 800 hours x $136.00 and travel 
expenses. 

$342,160 

 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Agreement for Professional Services with HPG for 
the extension of professional services for the period August 3, 2019 through December 20, 2019, effective 
August 3, 2019, increasing the maximum payable by $342,160 from $1,645,704 to 1,987,864 for the additional 
professional fees and travel expenses, and authorize the Chairman to sign. 

 



















 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
September 18, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution authorizing Kern County Hospital Authority to participate in the 
Housing Funds for Whole Person Care Pilot programs in Fiscal Year 2019‐2020 
 

Requested Action: Approve; Adopt Resolution; Authorize Chief  Executive Officer  to  sign  final 

Agreement subject to approval as to form by Counsel 

 
Summary:  The  2019‐2020  California  Governor’s  budget  allocated  $100  million  state  General  Fund 

housing  funds  (one‐time with multi‐year  spending  authority  through  June 30,  2025)  for  active Whole 

Person Care Pilot programs that provide housing services. This funding is available for the costs of long‐

term  and  short‐term  housing  for  Medi‐Cal  beneficiaries  who  are  mentally  ill  and  are  experiencing 

homelessness,  or  are  at  risk  of  homelessness.  The  funding  may  be  used  to  match  local  county 

investments and shall not supplant existing funding for these services. This funding allocation does not 

require local matching funding. 

 

The California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) developed a funding allocation methodology 

that considers prevalence of  individuals who are mentally  ill and are experiencing homelessness using 

the Point in Time Count; geographical cost of living using Fair Market Rent and WPC pilot performance. 

Based on these parameters, Kern Medical’s Whole Person Care pilot was allocated $1,213,867.52. Kern 

Medical  requests  your  Board  adopt  the  attached  Resolution  authorizing  Kern  County  Hospital 

Authority’s  participation  in  these housing  funds  and designating  the Kern County Hospital Authority’s 

Chief Executive Officer as the single point of contact to the DHCS. 

 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

_________________ 
 
In the matter of:                       Resolution No. 2019-___ 
 
AUTHORIZING THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL 
AUTHORITY TO PARTICIPATE IN ONE-TIME 
HOUSING FUNDS FOR WHOLE PERSON CARE 
PILOTS FUNDING OPPORTUNITY UNDER  
BUDGET ACT OF 2019 (AB 74) 
_____________________________________ 
 
 I, MONA A. ALLEN, Authority Board Coordinator for the Kern County Hospital 
Authority, hereby certify that the following Resolution, on motion of Director __________, 
seconded by Director __________, was duly and regularly adopted by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority at an official meeting thereof on the 18th 
day of September, 2019, by the following vote, and that a copy of the Resolution has been 
delivered to the Chairman of the Board of Governors.  
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
                  MONA A. ALLEN  

                 Authority Board Coordinator 
  Kern County Hospital Authority  

          
 
                ____________________________ 
                Mona A. Allen             
 
             

 
RESOLUTION 

 
Section 1.  WHEREAS: 

   
(a) On December 30, 2015, the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services 

(“CMS”) approved the state’s request to extend the section 1115(a) demonstration project, 
entitled “California Medi-Cal 2020 Demonstration” (“Waiver”).  This extension allows 
California to extend its safety net care pool for five years, in order to support the state’s 
efforts toward the adoption of robust alternative payment methodologies and support better 
integration of care; and 



Page 2 of 3 
 

(b) The Waiver authorizes the Whole Person Care initiative, a five-year pilot 
program, to test locally-based initiatives that will coordinate physical health, behavioral 
health, and social services, as applicable, in a patient-centered manner for vulnerable 
Medi-Cal beneficiaries who are high users of multiple health care systems and continue to 
have poor outcomes with the goals of improved beneficiary health and well-being through 
more efficient and effective use of resources; and  
 

(c) Kern Medical Center is a Lead Whole Person Care Pilot Entity of a 
consortium of Kern County departments and community-based organizations; and 

 
 (d) California Governor Gavin C. Newsom and the California Legislature have 
recognized the critical role Whole Person Care Pilot programs play in reducing 
homelessness for those with special needs; and 
  

(e) Governor Newsom, the Legislature, and the Kern County Hospital 
Authority recognize the need for flexible state-only funding for new services to Medi-Cal 
beneficiaries who are living with mental illness who are also homeless or at risk of 
homelessness, as well as additional at-risk populations; and 

 
(f) Governor Newsom and the Legislature have allocated $100 million dollars 

in one-time state General Fund housing funds for Fiscal Year 2019-20 to Whole Person 
Care Pilot programs (“Housing Funds”); and   

 
(g) Governor Newsom and the Legislature have directed Whole Person Care 

Pilot programs to leverage other available funding for this purpose and prohibited any 
supplantation of existing funding or services in order to maximize the impact of Housing 
Funds for Whole Person Care Pilot programs; and 
  

(h) Governor Newsom and the Legislature require Whole Person Care Pilot 
programs that receive Housing Funds for Whole Person Care Pilot programs to expend the 
funding no later than June 30, 2025, and further stipulate that services provided with this 
funding must comply with all ‘Housing First’ principles as defined in California Welfare 
and Institutions Code Sections 8255 and 8256; and 

 
 (i) The Board of Governors affirms the commitment of the Kern County 
Hospital Authority to combatting homelessness and improving housing options for 
residents living with mental illness and who are homeless or at risk of homelessness, or 
additional at-risk populations in our communities, pursuant to the provisions of Budget Act 
of 2019 (AB 74) and the receipt of Housing Funds for Whole Person Care Pilot programs. 
 
 Section 2.  NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority, as follows: 
 

1. This Board finds the facts recited herein are true, and further finds that this 
Board has jurisdiction to consider, approve, and adopt the subject of this Resolution. 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

2. This Board hereby authorizes the Kern County Hospital Authority to 
participate in the Housing Funds for Whole Person Care Pilot programs in Fiscal Year 
2019-2020. 

 
 3. This Board hereby designates the Chief Executive Officer of the Kern 
County Hospital Authority as the single point of contact to the state Department of Health 
Care Services for the Housing Funds for Whole Person Care Pilot programs allocation. 

 
4. This Board hereby authorizes Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd to 

sign the final approved agreement with the state Department of Health Care Services on 
behalf of the Kern County Hospital Authority. 

 
5. The provisions of this Resolution shall be effective, in force, and operative 

as of the 18th day of September, 2019. 
 
6. The Authority Board Coordinator shall provide copies of this Resolution to 

the following: 
 

  Kern Medical Center 
  Chief Executive Officer 
  Chief Financial Officer 
  Vice President of Administrative Services 
  Legal Services Department 
  Kern County Board of Supervisors   

Kern County Administrative Office 
  Office of County Counsel 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
   



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
September 18, 2019 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 1 to the Proposal to Recoat Existing Roof System with Western 
Pacific Roofing Corp.    
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the Proposal to Recoat Existing Roof System 
(Agreement) with Western Pacific Roofing Corporation, in the amount of $5,611, for a total revised Agreement 
amount of $273,611, to install roofing materials at the Columbus Clinic as part of the solar panel installation.  
This change order compensates the contractor for Bonds and permits.         
 

To mitigate potential delays with possible minor Agreement changes, we are also requesting that your Board 

authorize Kern Medical’s Chief Executive Officer, to approve all future change orders in an amount not to exceed 

10% of the original Agreement amount, $26,800, for a total potential Agreement amount of $294,800. 

 
 

Payment for Services  Previous Agreements  Proposed Agreement  Variance 

$1,000.00  $268,000 – Agt.# 10719  $273,611  $5,610 

 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Amendment No. 1 to the Proposal to Recoat Existing 
Roofing System with Western Pacific Roofing Corp. to provide additional services for the new roof project at the 
Columbus Clinics with services beginning on September 9, 2019 with an anticipated completion date in 
December of 2019, in an amount not to exceed $5,611, authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve all 
future change orders in an amount not to exceed 10% of the original Agreement amount; and authorize the 
Chairman to sign. 
 
 
 











 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
September 18, 2019 
 
Subject:  Proposed Approval of Administrative Policy for Electronic Health Record (EHR) Transition and 
Implementation 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve 
 
Summary:   
 

Kern Medical leadership has identified the requirement for a period of transition from former 
electronic and paper‐based practices to a new fully integrated EHR.  The proposed policy defines the 
process for recognition of workflow changes during the transition phase of the EHR implementation 
and assigns responsibilities to include those of each department to be aware of the need for revision of 
policies, as necessary, and to appropriately modify those policies to meet the new processes and 
workflows embedded in the new EHR. 
 
Kern Medical recommends your Board approve the proposed policy to create a transition period from 
November 1, 2019 and end approximately twelve to eighteen (12‐18) months after full 
implementation. 
 



 

 

Department: Administration 

Policy No. 
 

ADM-LD--XXX 

Effective Date: 
 

New 

Review Date: 
 

New 

Page 
 

1 of 3  
 

Title: Electronic Health Record (EHR) Transition and Implementation 
 
I. PURPOSE: 

To provide a transition period and guidelines for identifying changes in workflow 
and process in order to convert pre-implementation and/or paper-based practices 
to those within the fully integrated EHR. 
 

II. DEFINITIONS:  
A. Electronic Health Record (EHR) System – An EHR for computerized patient 

health records, which include, but are not limited to: 
1. Administrative information, e.g., patient placement, billing, etc. 
2. Clinical data, e.g., patient care documentation, order entry, diagnostic 

test results, etc. 
3. Demographic patient placement, e.g., admitting, registration, etc. 

 
III. POLICY STATEMENT: 

A. It is the policy of Kern Medical Center (KMC) to integrate several computer-
based patient information and documentation systems into a seamless clinical 
information system known as the EHR and to provide safe, efficient and 
timely patient care during EHR implementation.  KMC has acknowledged the 
need for an identified period of transition from paper-based practices. 
1. This fully integrated system will support and provide clinical data and 

documentation that enables all interdisciplinary health care providers to 
deliver quality care and promote increased communication for all 
interdisciplinary health care team members. 
 

IV. PROCEDURE 
A. System Assessment 

1. The exact level of technological need, staff education and changes in 
workflow will be evaluated after the EHR is successfully placed into 
service and fully implemented.  A period of evolution including 
modifications, conversions and ongoing education will be necessary to 
ensure a smooth transition with sustainable processes necessary for a 
fully functioning EHR. 

2. The EHR implementation is expected to be a dynamic process in all 
departments of the facility.  A defined transition period will be used to 
clarify any changes in workflow patterns and/or needs. 

3. To minimize disruption and provide continuity of patient care during the 
EHR implementation, a transition period, beginning with the 
implementation of the EHR and ongoing as implementation and the 
learning cycle proceed, will be in place to allow for tailoring employee  
 
 
 
 



 

ADM-LD-XXX New Page 2 of 3 

 
workflow and/or practices and reflect any changes in applicable policies 
and procedures. 
a) The transition period will begin November 1, 2019 and end 

approximately twelve to eighteen (12-18) months after full 
implementation ends. 

B. Education 
1. Ongoing education to support KMC staff in the effective use of the EHR 

will require updates and revisions to reflect system evolution during the 
implementation period. 

2. Notification of training changes and review of education will be made 
available to all staff members affected by necessary revisions. 

3. Unit and/or Department Managers/Directors are responsible to ensure all 
authorized EHR users have attended and successfully completed 
training for the applications required by their job descriptions and clinical 
roles, identifying departmental workflow and/or process changes and 
revising applicable policies, as necessary, to address any practice 
changes, duties or responsibilities of staff. 

C. Responsibilities - Identification and Implementation of Change  
1. All KMC staff, with authorized use of the EHR system, are responsible 

for identifying and reporting necessary workflow and process changes 
required during the implementation of the EHR system and transition 
from paper-based practices. 

2. Clinical Information (CI) staff are responsible to act as a liaison between 
KMC leadership, clinical staff and/or Information Technology (IT) 
personnel during the EHR system implementation and transition from 
paper-based practices. 

3. IT Site Director is responsible to collaborate with CI staff, Unit and/or 
Department Managers/Directors and act as liaison between KMC 
leadership to ensure the availability and functionality of necessary 
hardware and software, i.e., workstations, printers and internet 
connections. 

4. Upon confirmation that practices and staff workflow have been 
appropriately established after the EHR implementation, policies and 
procedures defining any newly developed practices, procedures and/or 
responsibilities will be included in one or more specific KMC policies and 
procedures, as appropriate, and education provided to applicable staff 
members. 

 
V. SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  N/A 

 
VI. EDUCATION: 

A. Kern Medical Center Staff:  Will receive education pertaining to this policy, as 
appropriate, at time of unit-specific orientation and as changes occur.  Staff’s 
knowledge, skills and abilities will be validated during unit-specific orientation. 

B. Patients and Patient Representatives:  Not Applicable 
  

VII. DOCUMENTATION: N/A 
 

VIII. ADDENDUMS:  N/A 
 



 

ADM-LD-XXX New Page 3 of 3 

IX. REFERENCES: N/A 
 

X. KEY WORDS: Electronic Health Record, EHR, Implementation, Transition 
 
 

OWNERSHIP (Committee/Department/Team) ..................................................................................... Administration
ORIGINAL .......................................................................................................................................... September 2019
REVIEWED, NO REVISIONS ...................................................................................................................................... 
REVISED ..................................................................................................................................................................... 
APPROVED BY COMMITTEE ..................................................................................................................................... 
DISTRIBUTION .............................................................................................................. Administration Policy Manual
REQUIRES REVIEW ................................................................................................................................................... 

 
 
 
Chief Executive Officer Signature of Approval                    
Date    

 
 
 
Administrative Signature of Approval  Date  
 

 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
September 18, 2019 
  
Subject:  Public hearing regarding the meet and confer impasse between representatives of the Kern 
County Hospital Authority and Committee of Interns and Residents/Service Employees International 
Union, Local 1957, and Resolution implementing wage increases for resident physicians 
 
Recommended Action:  Open Hearing; Close Hearing; Approve; Adopt Resolution; Direct Staff to 
Implement 
 
Summary: 
 
On March 21, 2018, the Kern County Hospital Authority (Authority) and the Committee of Interns and 
Residents/Service Employees International Union, Local 1957 (CIR/SEIU) entered into a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) regarding the wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment of resident 
physicians, approved by your Board effective March 31, 2018 through March 31, 2021.   
 
During the negotiation of the MOU, the parties agreed to meet and confer with the intent of reviewing wages 
not sooner than 45 days but no later than 60 days after your Board approved a new Memorandum of 
Understanding between the Authority and Service Employees International Union, Local 521.  
 
In the Authority’s last, best, and final offer, we proposed an increase of 3% to be effective upon approval by 
your Board (anticipated at the February 20, 2019 meeting) and another 3% to be effective on July 1, 2019, for a 
total increase of 6%.  In considering our offer, we reviewed several factors including:  
 

 The number of residency applications received, which was over 2,400 for the 2018‐2019 academic year; 

 The number of available residency slots (30) compared to candidates interviewed (321); and 

 A comparison of resident salaries and median housing costs among various California teaching hospitals, 
both private and public. 

 
When weighing these factors, the Authority was confident that the proposed 6% total increase represented a 
fair and equitable increase for our resident physicians.   
 
September 19, 2018, the date the Authority and SEIU entered into a new MOU, triggered the timing to 
reconvene and review wages with CIR/SEIU.  On December 4, 2018, the Authority and CIR/SEIU entered into 
wage negotiations.  The parties met and conferred in good faith multiple times over a two‐month period.  On 
January 9, 2019, the Authority issued its last, best and final offer, and your Board approved a formal declaration 
of impasse on February 20, 2019.  Following mediation with a state mediator in a further effort to reach 
agreement, CIR/SEIU timely notified the state Public Employment Relations Board of its desire to move the 
dispute to factfinding.  The factfinding panel met on June 18, 2019, and the neutral factfinder subsequently 
issued a report on August 19, 2019 (copy attached). 

   



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

The factfinding neutral recommended wage increases as follows:  
 

 “3% increase effective March 2019 

 3% increase effective July 2019 

 2% increase effective July 2020.” 
 

The union concurred with the recommended terms of settlement.  In response to the report, the Authority 
filed a concurring and dissenting opinion.  In its opinion, the Authority dissented to the following: 
 

1. The panel chair’s statement that the lack of raises for CIR/SEIU represented employees in the past 
was due to delays in enabling legislation as stated in the background section of the report; 

2. The recommendation that the Authority should grant a 3% wage increase for the period between 
March 1, 2019 and July 1, 2019; and 

3. The recommendation that the Authority grant an additional 2% wage increase effective July 1, 
2020. 

 
The Authority’s position of a total increase of 6% over the contract period was and is reasonable.  
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board adopt the Authority’s last, best and final offer for a 6% 
increase, effective retroactive to July 1, 2019, and direct staff to implement.   
 
 













BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

_________________ 
 
In the matter of:                       Resolution No. 2019-___ 
 
RESOLVING AN IMPASSE IN NEGOTIATIONS 
BETWEEN REPRESENTATIVES OF THE KERN 
COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY AND 
COMMITTEE OF INTERNS AND RESIDENTS/ 
SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, 
LOCAL 1957, AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 6 
PERCENT WAGE INCREASE SET FORTH IN THE 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY’S LAST, 
BEST AND FINAL OFFER  
_____________________________________ 
 
 I, MONA A. ALLEN, Authority Board Coordinator for the Kern County Hospital 
Authority, hereby certify that the following Resolution, on motion of Director __________, 
seconded by Director __________, was duly and regularly adopted by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority at an official meeting thereof on the 18th 
day of September, 2019, by the following vote, and that a copy of the Resolution has been 
delivered to the Chairman of the Board of Governors.  
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
                  MONA A. ALLEN  

                 Authority Board Coordinator 
  Kern County Hospital Authority  

          
 
                ____________________________ 
                Mona A. Allen             
 
             

 
RESOLUTION 

 
Section 1.  WHEREAS: 

   
(a) The Committee of Interns and Residents/Service Employees International 

Union, Local 1957 (“CIR/SEIU”) represents residents and fellows (“Resident Physicians”) 
employed by the Kern County Hospital Authority Kern Medical Center (“Authority”); and 



Page 2 of 3 
 

(b) On March 21, 2018, the Authority and CIR/SEIU entered into a 
Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) regarding the wages, hours, and other terms and 
conditions of employment of the Resident Physicians, effective March 31, 2018, through 
March 31, 2021; and 

 
(c) Article V, Section 1 of the MOU states, in relevant part, the following: 

“The Authority and CIR/SEIU agree to meet and confer with the intent of reviewing wages 
not sooner than 45 days but no later than 60 days after the Board of Governors approves a 
new Memorandum of Understanding between the Authority and Service Employees 
International Union, Local 521” (“SEIU, Local 521”); and 

 
(d) The SEIU, Local 521 Memorandum of Understanding was ratified by the 

Authority on September 19, 2018; and 
 
(e) On December 4, 2018, the Authority and CIR/SEIU commenced a wage 

reopener and continued to meet and confer in good faith over a two-month period; and 
 
(f) On January 9, 2019, the Authority issued its last, best and final offer, 

restated in the agenda for the negotiations session on January 18, 2019, and sent to 
CIR/SEIU via confirming email on February 8, 2019; and   

 
(g) On February 20, 2019, the Board the Governors approved a formal 

declaration of impasse, which was presented to CIR/SEIU; and 
  

(h) On April 30, 2019, the parties engaged in mediation, but were unable to 
resolve the dispute; and 

 
(i) Following the April 30, 2019, mediation with a state mediator, CIR/SEIU 

timely notified the state Public Employment Relations Board of its desire to move the 
dispute to factfinding pursuant to Government Code section 3505.4; and 

 
 (j) The Authority and CIR/SEIU engaged in the factfinding process on June 
18, 2019, before a three-member factfinding panel comprised of a mutually-selected 
neutral, a CIR/SEIU representative, and an Authority representative.  That process has 
concluded with advisory findings of fact and recommended terms of settlement issued by 
the factfinding neutral, with a concurrence by CIR/SEIU, and a concurring and dissenting 
opinion by the Authority, with the advisory findings of facts and recommended terms of 
settlement received by the Authority on August 19, 2019; and  

 
(k) The Authority published and made the advisory finding of facts and 

recommended terms of settlement publicly available within 10 days of receipt, on August 
20, 2019, and that report has remained publicly available since that date; and 
  

(l) The Board of Governors received and considered the factfinding report; and 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 (m) Government Code section 3505.7 states that a public agency may, after any 
applicable mediation and factfinding procedures have been exhausted, and after holding a 
public hearing regarding the impasse, implement its last, best, and final offer; and 

 
(n) On September 18, 2019, during a regular meeting, the Board of Governors 

held a public hearing regarding the impasse between the Authority and the CIR/SEIU, 
prior to resolving the impasse. 

 
 Section 2.  NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority, as follows: 
 

1. This Board finds the facts recited herein are true, and further finds that this 
Board has jurisdiction to consider, approve, and adopt the subject of this Resolution. 
 

2. Unless otherwise indicated in this Resolution, the following changes in 
terms and conditions of employment for those employees in the unit represented by 
CIR/SEIU shall be implemented concurrent with the passage, approval, and adoption of 
this Resolution by the Board of Governors.  This Resolution shall take precedence over 
any conflicting rules, regulations, policies, Memoranda of Understanding or other 
documentary provisions. 

 
3. This Board hereby approves and adopts the six percent (6%) wage increase 

set forth in the last, best and final offer issued by the Authority on January 9, 2019, 
effective July 1, 2019. 
 

4. The provisions of this Resolution shall be effective, in force, and operative 
as of the 18th day of September, 2019. 

 
5. The Authority Board Coordinator shall provide copies of this Resolution to 

the following: 
 

  Kern Medical Center 
  Chief Executive Officer 
  Chief Financial Officer 
  Human Resources Department   

Legal Services Department 
  CIR/SEIU, Local 1957 
   



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
September 18, 2019 
 
Subject:  Comments Regarding Budget Variances – July 2019 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
Summary:   
 
The following items have budget variances for the month of July 2019:  

 
Indigent Funding: 
As a conservative approach to recognizing indigent funding revenue, during each month of fiscal year 2020 Kern 
Medical will only recognize 95% of the total projected revenue for the Managed Care Rate Range Program, the 
Medi‐Cal Quality Assurance Fee Program, the Physician SPA Program, and the AB915 Outpatient Supplemental 
Funding  Program.    Kern Medical will  recognize  100% of  the  total  projected  revenue  for  the Medi‐Cal Waiver 
Programs of Public Hospital Redesign and Incentives  in Medi‐Cal  (PRIME), the Global Payment Program (GPP), 
and the Whole Person Care Program (WPC).  Kern Medical will also recognize 100% of the projected revenue for 
the Enhanced Payment Program (EPP) and the Quality Incentive Program (QIP).  
 
Indigent Funding: 
In June 2019, Kern Medical started accounting for the Ambulatory Surgery Center (ASC) using the equity method 
of accounting for investments.  Each month Kern Medical will obtain an income statement from the ASC.  Kern 
Medical will post a single journal entry each month to recognize the gain or loss recorded by the ASC.  For July 
2019 Kern Medical recognized a $131 thousand‐dollar loss on ASC operations and a corresponding decrease to 
Kern Medical's investment in the ASC. 
 
Other Operating Revenue: 
Other operating revenue has an unfavorable budget variance for the month due to the fact that for some items 
within  this  section  of  the  income  statement  Kern Medical  only  receives  funding  on  a  quarterly  basis.    Kern 
Medical  receives  KHS  Grant  funds,  Emergency  Medical  Services  funds,  and  Managed  Medi‐Cal  Pay  for 
Performance  funds  on  a  quarterly  basis;  however,  the  budget  for  these  items  is  spread  over  the  entire  12 
months of the year.    In addition,  items within this section such as contributions receive funding  inconsistently 
throughout the year.  
 
Benefits Expense: 
Benefits expense has an unfavorable budget variance for July due to higher than average vacation pay expense 
for the month.  
 
Registry Nurses: 
Registry nurses expense has an unfavorable budget variance for the month.  Kern Medical continues to rely on 
contracted nurse staffing to supplement the nursing departments while maintaining nurse recruiting efforts. 
 



Comments Regarding Budget Variances – July 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 

Other Professional Fees: 
Other  professional  fees  have  a  favorable  variance  for  the  month  because  of  lower  than  average  legal  fees 
expense and lower than average contract labor expense.  
 
Supplies Expense: 
Supplies expenses have an unfavorable budget variance for  the month of July primarily due to above average 
expenses for pharmaceuticals and prostheses.  In addition, Kern Medical was slightly under accrued in the prior 
month for general medical supplies.   
 
Other Expenses: 
Other expenses have a  favorable variance  for  the month due to  lower  than average repairs and maintenance 
expenses for July. 
 
 

 
  



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ FINANCIAL REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – JULY 2019

SEPTEMBER 2019



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



Slide 7



Slide 8



Slide 9



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
September 18, 2019 
 
Subject:  Kern County Hospital Authority, Chief Executive Officer Report 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
Summary: 
 
The Chief Executive Officer has provided the attached 3‐month trend Analysis: Volume and Strategic Indicators 
for Kern Medical 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ VOLUMES REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – JULY 2019

SEPTEMBER 2019



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on September 18, 2019, to discharge its responsibility to evaluate and 
improve the quality of care rendered by health facilities and health practitioners. The 
closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health 
and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
September 18, 2019, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Monina Viloria v. Kern 
Medical Center, Workers’ Compensation Appeals Board Case Nos. ADJ9552090 
and ADJ4587347 –  
 

 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
September 18, 2019, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: One (1) 
Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the 
advice of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not 
limited to, an accident, disaster, incident, or transactional occurrence that might 
result in litigation against the Authority and that are known to a potential plaintiff or 
plaintiffs –  
 

 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
September 18, 2019, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(1).) Number of cases: One 
thousand five hundred forty-eight (1,548) Significant exposure to litigation in the 
opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice of legal counsel, based on: Facts 
and circumstances that might result in litigation against the authority but which the 
authority believes are not yet known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs, which facts 
and circumstances need not be disclosed – 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on September 18, 2019, to consider: 
 
 
   X    PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive 
Officer (Government Code Section 54957) –     
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 




